
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Galbraith Law  


ADRIA Board Policy Review 


November 2013 


 


The purpose of this review is to identify language in the board policies that may not 


be appropriate. For example, in our June board meetings we determined that there 


is mandatory language compelling the Executive Director to do things for which 


ultimately she has no control. Rather than stating these items as mandatory they 


will be stated as goals and objectives or other similar language. Also, where it is 


appropriate to use mandatory language then the action to be taken or consequences 


in the event of a breach must be spelled out.  


This review will start with those three items that were identified in our June 


meetings as requiring review. I will then move on to review the remainder of the 


board policies. 


1. Policy II 5. Financial Planning 


1.1. This section uses compulsory language in the preamble by stating that 


financial planning “shall not …”. I recommend replacing the preamble with 


the following: 


All financial planning during any fiscal period or part of a fiscal period 


must be done with a primary objective of not risking financial jeopardy 


or compromising the ADRIA Ends policies. 


1.2. Change the second sentence of the preamble to:  


Accordingly, the executive director will not, without the approval of the 


Board, cause or allow financial planning which: 


1.3. Add a new item 7 which reads:  


Deviate by more than 10% of Board’s mission outcomes. 


2. Policy II 6. Financial Condition 


2.1. Replace the first sentence of the preamble with the following: 


 If the financial condition is in jeopardy, the executive director must 


immediately notify the Board. 


2.2. Replace the second sentence of the preamble with the following:  


The Executive Director must not do any of the following without 


permission of the Board. 


3. Policy II 7 Security/Operating Reserve 


3.1. Replace the second sentence of the preamble with the following:  







Galbraith Law  


Any decision of a financial nature must be done with reference to the 


budgeted allocation for reserve funds. The Executive Director must not 


knowingly deviate from the budget allocations and should  


circumstances occur that may result in a deviation, the Executive 


Director will immediately notify the Board. To achieve this objective, 


the Executive Director will: 


3.2. Change the first word of point 2 from “Either” to “Neither”. 


4. Remainder of Board Policies 


4.1. In reviewing the entire Board Policies, I did not find any other instances 


where the policy creates an impossible situation by mandating compliance 


by the Executive Director, the Board, the executive or any individual 


Board member for something over which they do not have control. 


5. General Comment 


5.1. Throughout the policies I found certain recurring issues. Addressing these 


issues, in my view, will improve the policies. 


5.2. Use of negative language. This is especially apparent in Policy II – 


Executive Director Limitations.  By contrast, Policy  IV Board Work is 


consistently written in positive language. My preference, for many reasons, 


is to use positive language. Some of these reasons include the following: 


5.2.1. Positive language encourages action by letting people know what they 


can do rather than what they cannot do. 


5.2.2. Positive language is easier to understand. 


5.2.3. The human brain has difficulty processing the negative. Rather, the 


brain simply processes information without regard to the negative or 


positive. For example, if I tell you that you must not under any 


circumstances think of a pink elephant, you will immediately think of 


a pink elephant. 


5.3. Here are two examples of policies that can be reframed. 


5.3.1. Policy Type II 1. The Executive Director will only engage in and will 


consistently encourage practices which are prudent and ethical. 


5.3.2. Policy Type II 2. (starting with the second sentence) The Executive 


Director will:  


5.3.2.1. Ensure the board is aware of relevant trends, anticipated adverse 


media coverage … 


5.3.2.2. Submit the required monitoring in a timely, accurate way and 


with clear language. 


5.3.2.3. Include as many staff and stakeholder points of view … 


5.3.2.4. Present information succinctly and with clarity. 







Galbraith Law  


5.3.2.5. Etc.  


5.4. In many places, and once again especially in Policy II, some of the three or 


four letter words are used ineffectively.  


5.4.1. For example, there are several places where it states “the Executive 


Director may not”. The word may is an optional word suggesting that 


the Executive Director has a choice and they may not do this or maybe 


they will. The word “must” is far more effective.  


5.4.2. The use of the word “shall” is also problematic. It has a double 


meaning. It can mean something is mandatory or it can mean 


something will be happening in the future (I shall be going shopping on 


Tuesday). For that reason, I avoid using “shall” in any writing and 


especially when writing policies or agreements. If the intention is to 


write about something that will occur in the future use the word “will”. 


If the intention is to write about something that is mandatory then use 


the word “must”. 


6. Conclusion 


6.1. Thank you for the opportunity of reviewing the Board Policies. It has 


helped in learning more about the organization. The issues I was asked to 


review are addressed in the first four points of this document. The 


remainder of the document is done on my own initiative. Since I am the 


person raising the remaining issues I also quite prepared to undertake the 


task of revising the Board Policies to address the issues I have raised in 


Section 5. 


6.2. I wish you all the best with your meetings of November 22 and 23  and 


look forward to joining you at the next meetings. 


 


Respectfully submitted,  


Stan Galbraith 

















 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 1 of 8 
 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA)  
Complaint Resolution Policy  


DRAFT 2.3 January 2013  
 


Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to address, in an open and transparent fashion, all 
concerns,  disputes and complaints that may arise and be brought to the attention of 
ADRIA concerning: 
 
 Member conduct: 


o Code of Conduct and/or Ethical breaches: as prescribed by the ADR 
Institute of Canada at http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/index.cfm  


o Professional competency:  issues arising from concerns regarding a 
member’s competency or ability (mental capacity?).  


o Business practices:  issues arising from the business practices of a 
member in regard to ADR service delivery, including fees and billing. 
 


 ADRIA functions: 
o Board activities: policies and governance of the Society;  
o Operational activities: programs, policies, services, memberships, 


rosters, directories, offered or administered by ADRIA staff, 
contractors and volunteers; and  


o Educational activities: programs, initiatives, certificates, evaluations, 
assessments, designations, equivalencies, instructors or coaches, as 
delivered or administered by ADRIA.  


 


Applicable to: 
 
A complaint under this policy may be made by: 


 ADRIA members, partners, affiliates, clients, sponsors, or students; 
 ADRIA staff, contractors, instructors, coaches, or volunteers; or 
 Members of the general public. 


 
Internal staff complaints, including complaints raised by those internally contracted 
to ADRIA, involving compensation, performance, interpersonal relations or HR 
issues are NOT addressed through this policy, although similar principles apply. 
 


Guiding Principles: 
  
 ADR First:  The skills and resources of ADRIA will be used to address and resolve 


complaints in a manner that is consistent with an interest-based, collaborative 
approach whenever possible.  


 Personal Responsibility and Engagement:  All parties to a complaint will actively 
participate, and strive to achieve a collaborative resolution and outcome at the 
earliest possible stage of the process. 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/index.cfm





 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 2 of 8 
 


 Confidentiality:  Information about a complaint will only be given to parties 
directly involved and to others on a need to know basis. 


 Timeliness:  Complaints will be dealt with promptly and resolved as quickly as 
possible.  


 Fairness: Review of complaints will be fair, impartial and respectful, allowing all 
parties to have their perspectives heard.  


 Thoroughness:  Review of complaints will be thorough and as detailed as 
possible, based upon the information provided by the parties. 


 Accessible and User-Friendly:  The process will be easily accessible and 
communicated to members.  It is designed to be clear and as simple to follow as 
possible. 


 Transparency:  The parties will be provided clear and understandable reasons 
for decisions relating to complaints. All parties will be provided with updates 
during review processes.   


 


Definitions: 
 
Complaint.  A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction from a member or the 
general public regarding an ADRIA member, or regarding ADRIA’s Operational, 
Educational or Board activities.  For ease of reference, all manner of concerns, 
disputes and/or complaints brought to the attention of ADRIA staff or Board 
members, formal or informal, shall be referred to as a complaint within this policy. 
 
Complaint Resolution Process: 
The ADRIA complaint resolution process is a progressive effort to resolve a 
complaint in a confidential, timely fashion at the lowest practical level.  The 
emphasis throughout this process is on personal responsibility, engagement, and 
constructive dialogue wherever possible.  There are three (3) progressive steps to 
the ADRIA Complaint Resolution process, as detailed in Annex A: 
Step 1: Informal 
Step 2: Facilitated   
Step 3: Written/Formal 
 
A Complainant is the individual lodging a complaint against another individual, 
policy or practice within ADRIA’s jurisdiction.   
 
A Respondent is an individual against whom a complaint has been made, and/or 
someone responsible for the policy or activity complained about. 
 
An Ombudsperson is an individual who has been appointed by the Board to act as an 
intermediary, convening authority, or mediator in the complaint process, and to 
work with the parties to achieve a resolution.  The Board may appoint a roster of 
Ombudspersons, the appointments of which may be from the Board, the staff, or the 
general membership based on experience, personal reputation and neutrality.  
 
The Board refers to the ADRIA Board of Directors, as elected by the membership. 
 







 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 3 of 8 
 


A Policy is any policy that has been approved by the ADRIA Board of Directors. 
 
ADRIA staff refers to employees and contractors directly employed or engaged by 
ADRIA to deliver core functions.  It does not refer to ADRIA instructors or coaches. 
 
Discipline refers to the corrective action taken in respect to an individual when a 
complaint is upheld, and/or found to have substance, and/or agreed to as a 
consequence of a negotiated or mediated outcome.  Disciplinary measures are 
normally considered confidential, and the details are usually not shared with other 
parties to the conflict, except when considered necessary to safeguard the public. 
[Note that ADRIC policy mentions disciplinary measures.  Should we include, exclude, 
expand, remain silent, or simply refer to a separate Board policy?] 


 
Referrals: 
 
Matters that cannot be resolved by the ADRIA Complaint Resolution Process, or are 
referred by the Board of Directors, may be directed to the ADR Institute of Canada’s 
Complaints and Discipline Policy: http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/complaints.cfm  
 
If a matter falls under the dispute resolution provisions of the ADRIA Bylaw 8.4 
(attached) the matter may be referred to Negotiation, Mediation and/or Arbitration.  
[This bylaw is extremely unclear and contracticts this policy.  Needs revision]  
 


Documenting Complaints: 
  
A record will be kept of any Formal/Written complaint under this process. 
Information about such complaints will include the parties involved, a description of 
the complaint, who handled it, what was done to resolve the complaint, the 
timeframe, and a description of the resolution or an explanation for non-resolution. 
These records will be maintained by the Executive Director in a confidential file. 
 
A summary of complaints, including total number of Step 2 and Step 3 complaints 
and the nature of complaints received, will be prepared by the Executive Director 
and reported to the Board of Directors regularly throughout the year. 
 


Responsibility for Implementation: 
 
This policy respects the accountability framework of ADRIA which provides that: 


 Operational and Educational activities are the  responsibility of the Executive 
Director; and 


 matters relating to Board policy, activities, decisions and governance are the 
responsibility of the Board of Directors. 


 


 
 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/complaints.cfm





 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 4 of 8 
 


Annex A – ADRIA Complaint Resolution Process & Procedures 
 
Step 1 - Informal 
 
An informal complaint resolution effort is characterized by an individual’s personal 
efforts to seek information and express their concern(s) without recourse to a 
formal, written complaint.  Early, Local and Informal (ELI) engagement is the best 
approach to most conflict situations, as it is important to ensure that the 
respondent, or the responsible person, is made aware of the concern and be allowed 
the first opportunity to offer an explanation or remedy.  When appropriate, or in 
preparation, the complainant could also speak with any person who is most familiar 
with or responsible for the matter of concern.   Informal resolutions are often 
achieved without recourse to, or without the knowledge of any ADRIA staff or Board 
member. 
 
The first person a complainant should talk to is the person with whom he or she has 
the conflict, or is responsible for the activity (the respondent).  If the complainant is 
unable to resolve the matter with the respondent, and/or is unsure about who to 
talk to, he or she is encouraged to consult with an ADRIA staff member or the 
Executive Director.  He or she will assist the complainant in directing the concern. 
 
Complaints regarding the Ethics, Conduct, or Professionalism of ADRIA 
members in their practice should first be addressed with the member directly.  In 
such circumstances, ADRIA staff can only offer general assistance and 
encouragement to the parties in their efforts to resolve their dispute informally.  
Both complainant and respondent(s) are encouraged to refer to this policy and its 
guiding principles as they work together to achieve a resolution. 
 
Complaints about practices pertaining to Educational activities, Membership,  
Designations or Accreditations will initially be dealt with by the most senior staff 
member responsible for this activity. 
 
If the complainant is unable to identify the responsible staff member, or for day-to-
day operational matters that require greater scrutiny, the Executive Director (ED) 
may be approached for assistance.  The ED will usually inquire about any initial 
resolution efforts, and will consult as appropriate with ADRIA staff to assist. 
Every attempt should be made by the complainant to resolve the matter informally 
within the first two (2) weeks after a concern is voiced.  To this end, direct dialogue 
and negotiation between the parties involved is strongly encouraged.  
 


 
 
 
 
 







 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 5 of 8 
 


Step 2:  Facilitated 
 
If the informal approach does not resolve the matter to the satisfaction of the 
complainant, the complainant can refer their complaint, verbally or by e-mail to 
the ADRIA Responsible Contact (see table below).  Step 2 might be the first occasion 
that an ADRIA staff or Board member becomes aware of the complaint. 
 
This step in the Complaint Resolution Process is NOT characterized by a formal, 
written complaint, but instead by a genuine interest in further ADR resolution 
efforts to address issues that have not been resolved though initial, informal efforts.  
The early submission of a written formal complaint and supporting documentation 
does NOT, by definition, escalate the complaint to Step 3 (Written/Formal), unless 
such action is warranted and/or is considered in the best interests of the Society. 
 
The ADRIA Responsible Contact will maintain a personal record of any complaint 
received, including details of all informal efforts made by the complainant to achieve 
an early resolution.  Whenever practical, complainants will be encouraged to pursue  
their informal options (Step 1 of the Complaint Resolution Process), and be assisted 
as appropriate. 
 
Subject/Type of Complaint ADRIA Responsible Contact 
Complaints regarding ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of an ADRIA member 


Executive Director 


Complaints regarding ADRIA services, programs, 
activities, operations, education & professional 
development activities, contractors or volunteers 


ADRIA Staff – the staff member responsible 
for the service area relating to the complaint 
or, if necessary, the Executive Director. 


Complaints regarding ADRIA staff members Executive Director 
Disputes between ADRIA staff members Executive Director (other policies apply) 
Complaints concerning the Executive Director Board Officer – Vice-President 
Complaints regarding Board Policies, Board 
actions/decisions and governance of the Society 


Board Officer –Vice-President 


Matters related to Board/staff relations Board Officer  - Vice-President (or President 
if the concern relates to the VP) 


Complaints concerning a Board Member Board Officer – Vice President (or President 
if the concern relates to the VP) 


 


Complaints received at Step 2 will be addressed in a timely fashion by the ADRIA 
Responsible Contact, and a response can be expected within two (2) weeks.  Specific 
facilitation processes or outcomes are not defined, except to note that they must 
strive to achieve resolution from the perspective of the complainant and any other 
parties engaged.  Facilitation or mediation services may be offered.  Upon 
conclusion, the Responsible Contact will summarize the outcome and conclusions in 
an e-mail to the complainant and other parties as appropriate. 


 
 
 
 







 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 6 of 8 
 


Step 3 – Written/Formal 
 
If early resolution efforts do not achieve a resolution in a timely fashion or to the 
satisfaction of the complainant, a written formal complaint may be forwarded or 
requested.   The submission of a written complaint is NOT a mechanism for 
bypassing Steps 1 and 2 of the Complaint Resolution Policy, as the complainant is 
obligated to detail all prior efforts to achieve a resolution, and may be directed to 
earlier steps in the policy if required. 
 
A formal complaint is characterized by an written submission, including a clear 
statement of the complaint, resolution efforts to date, and the outcome(s) desired. 
The Respondent and ADRIA Responsible Contact must be clearly identified.  Written 
complaints are usually accompanied by supporting documentation, and may be 
submitted to: 
 


 The ADRIA Executive Director for all operational and professional 
development issues, and for any complaints regarding the ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of ADRIA members;  


 The Vice President of the Board for issues pertaining to Board policies or 
conduct of the Society; or 


 The President of the Board (only in rare circumstances). 
 
Written formal complaints will be acknowledged within 2-3 business days.  When a 
complainant is referred back to an earlier step in the Complaint Resolution Process 
(Informal or Facilitated), this shall be clearly explained in order to avoid confusion.   
 
To ensure that this policy’s guiding principles are fully applied to achieve a mutually 
satisfactory outcome for all parties, the Step 3 resolution options detailed below will 
be carefully considered by the Board Officers or Executive Director (in consultation 
with the Board) ?  The complainant and respondent(s) will be advised of the selected 
recourse mechanism within two (2) weeks of receipt of the written complaint: 
 


Option A (preferred) – referral to an ADRIA Ombudsperson 
 
Upon receipt of a referral from either the Executive Director or the Board, the 
Ombudsperson will contact the parties to commence an attempt to resolve the 
issue(s).  The Ombudsperson shall attempt to resolve all issues using various tools 
at his or her disposal and in a manner deemed most appropriate by the 
Ombudsperson in consultation with the parties. All parties are encouraged to work 
with the Ombudsperson, noting that:    


 
a. If the complaint is not resolved by efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 


Ombudsperson may refer the matter to the ADRIA Board for review and 
determination (Options B & C).  Similarly, for the parties, any dispute that is not 
resolved through an Ombudsperson may be appealed to the Board of Directors; 
or 
 







 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 7 of 8 
 


b. If the complaint is resolved by the efforts of the Ombudsperson, the 
Ombudsperson will send a confirmation letter to the parties and write a report 
of the complaint, documenting the parties, the issue, steps taken and the 
resolution. What actually happened or what was discussed during this process 
will be confidential and not part of the report. The report will be submitted to 
the ADRIA Board and/or the Executive Director, as appropriate.  
 


The Ombudsperson will make every effort to complete this work within sixty (60) 
days from the date of receipt of the written complaint. 
 


Option B:  Board Review Panel 
 
Where a matter needs be referred to a Board Review Panel, a three (3) member 
panel shall be appointed by the ADRIA Board of Directors.  The panel will consist of 
at least two (2) members of the Board, with a third panel member being the 
Executive Director, an ADRIA staff person, an ADRIA member at large or, depending 
upon the severity or nature of the complaint, a subject matter expert or professional 
from outside ADRIA.   At the discretion of the Board, a two (2) member panel can be 
appointed for less complex complaints, with at least (1) Board member appointed.  
 
The Review Panel will contact the complainant and the respondent within one (1) 
week of being struck, disclose the complaint as appropriate, and schedule a meeting 
within thirty (30) days to be attended by the parties.  During this meeting the 
parties will have an opportunity to provide their views on the matter and present 
evidence.   A written decision of the panel shall be provided to the parties within 
two (2) weeks of the meeting date.  The results will later be presented to the Board 
as a whole, and there is no appeal. 
 


Option C:  Board Determination 
 
Where a matter is referred directly, or by an Ombudsperson to the ADRIA Board of 
Directors, the Board may choose to determine the matter at a whole Board meeting 
or refer it to an ADRIA Board Review Panel (Option B).    
 
At the earliest opportunity, if the Board determines it will deal with the matter, the 
complainant and respondent(s) will be advised in writing of that decision and, if 
required, the date of the next scheduled ADRIA Board meeting.   The Board will 
further inform the parties of the process the Board chooses to use in resolving the 
matter, what additional information the Board requires, and whether the Board 
wishes the parties to appear (in person or by teleconference). 
 
When the Board determines the matter as a whole, a written determination of the 
Board will be provided to the parties within two (2) weeks, representing a final, 
non-appealable decision on the matter. 
 
 
 







 


ADRIA Draft Complaints Policy v2.3 January, 2014 Page 8 of 8 
 


 


Attachment 1: Bylaw Provisions 


8.4  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


1.   This Section applies to any dispute arising out of the Society's affairs and 
between members, or between the Society or its Director or its Officer and 
either,  


 


a. a member or a person who is aggrieved and who has for not more than 6 
months ceased to be a member; or  
 


b.  a person claiming through the member or aggrieved person or claiming under 
the Bylaws,  ????? 


 
2.   Any dispute subject to Subsection 1 will be resolved by:  
 


a.  Direct negotiation between the affected parties. If resolution is not achieved, 
then by the provisions of the Complaints and Dispute Resolution and Process 
Policy by  
 


b.  Mediation pursuant to the National Mediation Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
mediation will be in Alberta. The language of the mediation will be English. If 
resolution is not achieved, then by  
 


c.  Arbitration pursuant to the Simplified Arbitration Rules of ADRIC. The place of 
arbitration will be in Alberta. The language of the arbitration will be English, 
and the decision will bind all parties.   


 
 








 
ADRIA Search & Appoint Fee schedule       4.2.2 
 


From: ADR Institute - Mary Anne Harnick [mailto:executivedirector@adrcanada.ca]  


Sent: January-06-14 8:43 AM 
To: Paul Conway; ADR Institute - Mena Sestito 


Cc: Erika Deines; Tammy Borowiecki; 'Smith, Chuck'; 'Bancroft, James'; 'Wendy Hassen'; 
mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 


Subject: RE: Cheque - Roster of Mediators - Appointment by Alberta Affiliate  


 
I will put this on the agenda for the National Board Meeting in January. 
Thank you for your input. ma 
 
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Friday, January 03, 2014 5:48 PM 
To: mena@adrcanada.ca 


Cc: Erika Deines; Tammy Borowiecki; executivedirector@adrcanada.ca; Smith, Chuck; Bancroft, James; 


Wendy Hassen; mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com 
Subject: RE: Cheque - Roster of Mediators - Appointment by Alberta Affiliate  


 
Happy New Year Mena. 
 
This mediator selection process is underway, held over to the New Year at the request of the initiating 
party (cc respondent).  As per your note below, it sounds like the cheque is “in the mail”. 
 
We urgently need to discuss the pricing structure for this referral service, as ADRIA has adopted a much 
higher price point for the Mediator and/or Arbitrator search & appoint function.  ADRIA pricing is 
currently based on the value in dispute, similar to the pricing structure already in place for  the National 
Arbitration Rules.  Current ADRIC documentation regarding the National Mediation Rules are silent on 
pricing, except in Schedule “A”: 
 


MEDIATION ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SCHEDULE 


The fee for the assistance of the ADR Institute of Canada, 


Inc., in selecting a Mediator under Rule 5.2(a)(i) is 


$500.00. Plus applicable taxes. (Please call Rob at 1-877- 


475-4353 ext 102 [rob@adrcanada.ca] for correct amount 


for your region.) 
 


This seemingly “set” or “suggested” price of $500, in our view, greatly undervalues the service being 
provided by ADRIA and/or ADRIC, and undervalues the profession.  The claim value below is almost 
$200K, and will require the attention of an experienced and designated mediator.  Yes, appointments 
are an important service we provide to our membership, and we do not want to adopt a fee structure 
that discourages consumer access to our rosters - but a fee of $500 for all referrals fails to properly 
recognize the value-added of administering a national association and provincial affiliate, or maintaining 
a national structure of professional designations.  Staff salaries, IT support, infrastructure, admin 
support are all essential enablers in our collective efforts to provide quality referrals of qualified and 
experienced ADR Professionals upon demand.  The fee in this particular case represents barely one 
quarter of one percent of the claim value.  In Alberta, with no reference to the National Rules of 
Mediation or Arbitration, we have recently charged $4000 for an Arbitrator search & appoint process, 
and $1000 for a mediator search & appoint.  None of these parties expressed concern over the fee, as it 
represented only a small percentage of their overall claim.  The fee was based directly on the amount in 



mailto:executivedirector@adrcanada.ca

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

mailto:mena@adrcanada.ca

mailto:executivedirector@adrcanada.ca

mailto:mjmhokanson@bryanco-cgy.com





dispute (and indirectly on the ADR qualifications sought), and all parties were fully satisfied with the 
services provided by ADRIA.  
 
Higher Claim values = Higher ADRIA fees = Higher designations, qualifications and experience levels 
sought & provided.   
Conversely, Lower Claim values = Lower ADRIA fees = Entry level and mid-range opportunities for 
Mediators and Arbitrators in this province.  
 
ADRIA recommends that the reference to $500 be immediately removed from Schedule “A” of the 
National Mediation Rules (except possibly as a minimum), and that one of two pricing regimes be 
adopted for 2014: 
Either 
(A) each provincial affiliate be asked to provide ADRIC with an annual fee schedule for this particular 
service, for files that are initially referred to ADRIC; or, in due course,  
(B) a national Search & Appoint fee structure be implemented through consultation with the affiliates. 
 
Option A is already allowed for under Schedule “A” to the National Mediation Rules, which provides for 
provincial affiliate pricing.  There is no specific fee schedule for a stand-alone search & appoint process 
under the Nation Arbitration Rules.  I would ask that the Alberta pricing policy be adopted immediately 
for Mediator and Arbitrator search & appoint processes assigned to this affiliate.  Note that these prices 
apply to search & appoint ONLY, and NOT to the full administration of a file under the National 
Arbitration Rules (which includes search and appoint, and for which a structured fee schedule has 
already been established – with ADRIA reservations expressed in the NOTE below). 
 
ADRIA 2014 Search & Appoint process for Mediators & Arbitrators 
 
Amount of Claim*                           ADRIA Fee 
Under $10K                                        $500 (see NOTE below) 
$10-75K                                                $750 (see NOTE below) 
$75-150K                                              $1000 
$150-500K                                           $2000 
$500K – 5M                                         $3000 
Over $5M                                            $4000 
 
* ADRIA has adopted the same structured breakdown of claims as we currently see in the National 
Arbitration Rules 
 
NOTE – with respect to Arbitrator Search & Appoint, the fees schedule above for Claims under $75K 
exceed those published for more extensive administrative services under the National Arbitration Rules 
($350 and $600).  ADRIA considers $500 to be the minimum charge for these services, and 
recommended that the fee schedule for the National Arbitration Rules be raised immediately. 
 
For consideration and discussion.  Please implement immediately for Mediation referrals to ADRIA the 
National Mediation Rules. 
 
Paul Conway | Director Member Services  


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 







Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Concordia University Campus 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
Mailing address: 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 111 
fax. (780) 433-9024            www.adralberta.com 


 
From: Mena Sestito [mailto:mena@adrcanada.ca]  
Sent: December-13-13 9:38 AM 


To: morgan@adrcanada.ca 
Cc: Paul Conway 


Subject: Cheque - Roster of Mediators - Appointment by Alberta Affiliate  


Importance: High 


 
Morgan, 
 
RE:  Roster of Mediators - Appointment of Mediator 
 
Please issue a cheque made payable to the Alberta Affiliate in the amount of $525.00.  This fee 
represents the search for a list of 3 mediators by the Alberta Affiliate.  The mediation is pursuant to ADR 
Canada's National Mediation Rules.  The request was received from [edited for privacy reasons] 
Thanks, 
 


Mena 


 


Mena Sestito 
Manager, Membership and Designations 
 


 
   405-234 Eglinton Avenue East  
   Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M4P 1K5 
   416-487-4447 • 1-877-475-4353  x/poste 101 
   fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
    
 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:mena@adrcanada.ca

mailto:morgan@adrcanada.ca






ADR Institute of Alberta 
Suite #605, 10707-100 Avenue Edmonton AB, T5J 3M1  
Phone (780) 433-4881 or Toll Free 1-800-232-7214 
www.adralberta.com 


 
Mr. 
Company 
Street 
City, AB 
Postal Code 
 
May 2, 2013 
 
Dear , 
 
After 30 years of distinguished service as AAMS since we opened our doors in 1982, we underwent 
a federally regulated transition and became the ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) in 2012. ADRIA’s 
first annual conference and AGM will be held in Calgary on June 6th and June 7th,  2013 at the at the 
Village Park Inn; and it is my great pleasure to invite [Company] to join us through your sponsorship 
and attendance.  
 
Sponsorship includes the opportunity to have your support officially acknowledged by the 
Conference Chair and to display your organization’s logo at the event; as well as on conference 
materials. Funding opportunities are available at three levels: 
 


                Gold Sponsorship: A $3,000 donation would allow [Company] to: 


 briefly address the audience or introduce a session (if desired) 


 send up to three (3) participants to this event 
 


                Silver Sponsorship: A $2,000 donation would allow your organization to: 


 briefly address the audience or introduce a session at the Conference (if desired) 


 send up to two (2) participants to this event 
 


                Bronze Sponsorship: A $1,000 donation would allow your organization to: 


 sponsor one of the coffee breaks at the Conference 


 send one (1) participant to this event 
 
Our sponsorship packages are extremely inexpensive compared to those of most major 
conferences, and all packages include at least one free registration. A very powerful slate of 
national and international speakers will be coming to Calgary, presenting on a number of 
contemporary issues, including: 
 


 Trends in Arbitration and Hard Lessons Learned 


 Is There Really a Place for Med / Arb in ADR? 


 Arbitration Costing 


 Impact of Court and Community Mediation on Full Time Practicing Professionals 







 
Our Keynote Speaker is Mr. Austin Vickers on: People v. The State of Illusion and our Plenary 
Speaker is the President of Mediators Beyond Borders, Ms. Lynn Cole.  
 
Should you wish to confirm your sponsorship of this special event or receive further information, 
please feel free to contact me (ph: 780-433-4881/ext.116; email: 
edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com) at your convenience. alternatively you may also call Mr. Pete 
Desrochers, Executive Director, Membership (ph: 780-433-4881/ext. 117; toll free: 1-800-232-
7214). 
 
We look forward to [Company] helping us celebrate our first annual conference as the ADR Institute 
of Alberta on June 6 and 7, 2013. 
 
With best regards, 
 
 
Erika Deines 
Executive Director Education 
ADR Institute of Alberta 
 


 
 
 



mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com






Janaury 18, 2014  


 


Professional Conduct Matters 


(When in doubt complaints go 
here given more "robust" 


process


Members 
with 


Designations 


Members 
without 


Designations


Other 
members 
(students, 


etc.)


ADRIA OPERATIONS


(Board, Policy, Staff, 
instructors, etc


Access to:


Members


Public 


BREACH of BYLAWS 


Access to Members ONLY 


ADRIA COMPLAINTS POLICY FRAMEWORK WITH 3 STREAMS (TRIAGE)  


Board discussion of Agenda item 3.2  Complaints Policy 


General Notes:  


 Must Keep Vision\Mission\Values in mind 


 What are consequences for breaches – these need to be outlined 


 What Standards do we want? 


 What is ADRIC-ADRIA Interface? 


 Instructor “competency” not covered by Code 


of Ethics  


 ADRIC Code of ethics covers members without 


designations 


 


 


Is Bylaw still appropriate? No process in place now 








BoD Minutes 18/19 December 2013  


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


WEDNESDAY/THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18/19, 2013 


VOTE BY EMAIL CORRESPONDENCE 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Dolores 


Herman, Q. Med; Deborah Howes, C. Arb; Stan Galbraith, C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.; 


Chuck Smith, Q. Med; Don Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Mike Hokanson, LLB 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: N/A 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, seconded by Dolores Herman, that the terms of reference for the 


Executive Director's Planning Committee, as drafted by Wendy Hassen, be adopted.  Approved 


Unanimously. 


 








From: Katherine Tyssen
To: Erika Deines; 
Subject: RE: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance
Date: Thursday, December 12, 2013 10:45:32 AM
Attachments: image001.png 


Hi Erika
 
How are you today?
 
Please be advised that I spoke with the underwriter, and he has reconfirmed that 
contract employees are covered while performing operations for the Insured.
 
Thanks and have a great day.
 
Kathy
 
Kathy Tyssen | Aon Reed Stenhouse Inc.
Commercial Business Unit | Account Manager
Suite 900, 10025-102A Avenue
Edmonton, AB T5J 0Y2
Tel: 780.423.9895 | Fax: 780.423.9876
Toll Free: 1-800-675-6173
katherine.tyssen@aon.ca
www.aon.ca
We are presently seeking new opportunities to be of service to the business/commercial sector and would really 
appreciate any referrals you may send our way.
Thank you for your support
Protect the environmental.  Print this e-mail only if absolutely necessary


 


From: Erika Deines [mailto:edexecutivedirector@adralberta.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2013 3:46 PM 
To: Katherine Tyssen 
Subject: ADR Institute of Alberta - liability insurance
 
Hi Katherine,
 
In our Renewal Application of August 30, 2013, I stated our employee count as 6 
full time and 1 part time person. Since all but one staff are working on contract-
employment (1 year terms), the Board of Directors has asked me to get 
confirmation in writing that our contract-employees are indeed covered by our 
insurance policy. Currently, we have 1 full-time employee (with benefit 
deductions), 1 part-time bookkeeper (no benefits), 3 contract-employees (21-25 
hours per week), and 1 contract-employee (28 hours). Additionally, we have 
project-related contractors who work between 8 and 28 hours a week, depending 



mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=Edexecutivedirector

mailto:katherine.tyssen@aon.ca

http://www.aon.ca/







on the project they work on. They are not on a 1 year term contract but on 1 – 6 
months contracts. 
 
All of the above people are engaged in the operations of ADR Institute, member 
services and professional development (i.e. membership applications, newsletters, 
annual directory, conference, managing rosters, financial reconciliation, organizing 
board meetings, and planning and organizing professional development courses/
workshops). In summary, our business operations are, as reported, mediation, 
arbitration and member services.
 
Could you please confirm in writing that your insurance coverage does cover our 
contract-employees and that your ‘independent contractor’ category applies to 
trades people who may carry their own liability insurance (i.e. painter, plumber, 
carpenter, etc.) and is different from the category “employee count”.
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at the address below. 
 
Thank you and I look forward to your correspondence.
 
Warmly,
 
Erika
 
Erika Deines/ Executive Director
 


ADR Institute of Alberta
Room CE223A
7128 Ada Boulevard
Ralph King Athletic Centre - Concordia University College
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4
ph. (780) 433-4881 ext 110 or 1-800-232-7214 ext 116
fax. (780) 433-9024
www.adralberta.com
 
The ADRIA offices are staffed by a dedicated team of part-time staff and volunteers.  
Every effort is made to return your calls and e-mails within 2-3 business days, and 
many answers are readily available on the website.  
Enquiries and in-person office visits are most easily accommodated weekdays 
between 10am and 2pm.  At all times, please send or leave detailed and clear 
messages to assist us in serving you professionally.
 
VISION: 
ADRIA is the strongest and most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution 
membership organization in Canada - recognized for advancing excellence in the 



http://www.adralberta.com/





field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals. 
 
MISSION:
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our 
members by: Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and 
restorative practices; Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta; Providing 
excellence in ADR professional development; Promoting the ethical use of ADR 
processes; Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability and designations for 
the ADR profession; Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization.
 
 
 
********************************************************************************** 
This communication (and any attachments) is directed in confidence to the addressee(s) listed above, and may not 
otherwise be distributed, copied or used. The contents of this communication may also be subject to privilege, and all 
rights to that privilege are expressly claimed and not waived. If you have received this communication in error, please 
notify us by reply e-mail or by telephone and delete this communication (and any attachments) without making a copy. 
Thank you. 
 
*************** 
La présente communication (et tout fichier rattaché) s'adresse uniquement au(x) destinataire(s) précité(s) et ne peut 
être autrement distribuée, copiée ou utilisée. Le contenu de cette communication peut être assujetti au privilège. Tout 
droit à ce privilège est expressément revendiqué et nullement abandonné. Si vous avez reçu cette communication par 
erreur, veuillez nous en avertir immédiatement en répondant à ce courriel ou en nous appelant. Veuillez également 
effacer cette communication (et tout fichier rattaché) sans en conserver une copie. Merci. 








Executive Director (the role of the ED is laid out in the attached Board Policies)  3.6 


 


Member Services, Director 


- Conferences 


- Rosters 


- Programs (Rural Neighborhood, Campuses) 


- Member Categories 


- Directories 


- Newsletter 


- Advocacy 


 


Professional Development, Manager 


- Co-deliver Certificate program with ADRIC 


- Create and foster relationships with educational institutes 


- Promote and advertise specialty courses (partnerships with course designers) 


- Expand to blended and online courses and seminars 


- Provide curriculum assistance for government accreditation (academic credit courses) 


 


Designations and Accreditation, Lead 


- Support Designations Committees 


- Implement national Accreditation process for ADR training programs and instructors 


- Oversee assessments 


- Handle the appeals process (as per policy) 


- Equivalency Checks 


 


Executive Assistant 


- Board support 


- Team support  


- Office management: equipment maintenance, supply orders, etc. 


- Financial support staff to Bookkeeper (preparation of documentation re. revenue received) 


 


Contract part-time Bookkeeper 


 


CAMVAP Program Coordinator 


 


Contractor(s)* - Project specific: 


IT specialist: web support, social media, online surveys, etc. 


Open House Coordinator: invitations, venue preparation and all related activities 


Designations Coordinator: screen applications for completement, prepare for Committee review, 


take direction from Committee re. follow-up required; forwarding approved applications to 


ADRIC. 


Registration Coordinator: coordinate with learners, instructors, venues and keep a database for 


education expenses/revenues; monthly reporting 


* Contractor(s) may work remotely with access to ADRIA files (online) 


 


Volunteers** - as available and as needed 


** Volunteers may work on a project basis and also work as Interns (and receive conflict 


management training in lieu of payment) 
 








 - 1 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


SATURDAY JANUARY 18, 2014 


OFFICES OF DAVIS LLP - CALGARY 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Dolores 


Herman, Q. Med; Deborah Howes, C. Arb; Stan Galbraith, C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.;  Erika 


Deines. 


Regrets: Chuck Smith, Q. Med; Don Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Mike Hokanson, LLB  


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 8:35 a.m., January 18. 


 


1.0 Welcome 


The President, Jim Bancroft, welcomed the other Board Members, and the Executive Director, 


Erica Deines, to the meeting. 


 


1.2 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


The ED drew to the attention of the Board a list of individuals who had not renewed their 


memberships in 2013.  It was agreed that a discussion should take place with respect to what, if 


any, Board action should be taken respecting these expired memberships.  This was added as 


agenda item 5.2.3 as Retention of Members. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


Deborah Howes suggested that, in the future, that the meeting minutes reflect the discussion or 


rationale surrounding Board motions on policy or new initiatives so that Board members unable 


to attend a particular meeting have a greater understanding of the information and reasoning 


leading to Board Motions.  The ED suggested that supporting information or reports contain a 


better rationale or explanation to aide absent board members and those looking at historical 


minutes.  The Governance Committee suggested when the Board deals with a motion by email 


exchange or teleconference, the record of that business be treated as a separate set of minutes 


which are then ratified at the next Board meeting.  For example, the "Terms of Reference" 


document for the ED Succession Planning Committee, item 4.5 from the meeting of November 


22; the Board voted by email in December; the motions has to be properly minuted.  As a "best 







 - 2 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


practice", the Board's meeting minutes should reflect the time when the Board goes into, and 


emerges from, an "in camera" session.  All reports and other documents tendered for discussion 


at Board meeting should be dated. 


 


ACTION ITEMS: 


Secretary to prepare a new Board meeting minute respecting the email vote of the Board 


concerning the Terms of Reference for the ED Succession Planning Committee. 


 


Secretary to include the time the Board goes into, and emerges from, “in camera” discussions. 


 


All parties submitting documents and reports for consideration by the Board should ensure that 


such materials are properly dated. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to approve the minutes of the 


meeting of November 22/23, 2013.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.0 Actions Arising from Previous Minutes (Old Business) 


3.1 Board Policy Review 


Stan Galbraith had previously agreed to conduct a review, and propose changes to the wording 


of, Board policies and, in particular, financial policies, so as to avoid placing the Executive 


Director and other staff in untenable situations, e.g., requiring the Executive Director and staff to 


achieve financial objectives which may be, due to circumstance, impossible to achieve or 


otherwise beyond the control of the Executive Director and staff.  Mr. Galbraith’s report, 


attached to these minutes, reflects the result of his review and his proposed revisions.  


Amendments suggested by Board members were as follows: 


- Mr. Galbraith’s proposed revision in item 1.1 of his report should be revised such that the 


words “not risking” are replaced by “avoiding”. 


- The proposed revision, in 1.3 of Mr. Galbraith’s report, should be revised to include the 


words “related to finances” at the end of that proposed revision. 


- The proposed revision in item 3.1 of Mr. Galbraith’s report should be revised to replace 


“done” with “made” in the first line. 







 - 3 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Stan Galbraith, and seconded by Deborah Howes, to amend the Board policies as 


suggested in items 1, 2, and 3 of the report as amended by the revisions noted above. Approved 


unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to refer items 4 and 5 in the 


report back to the Governance Committee for further review and consideration.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


3.2 Complaints Policy 


The revised draft Complaints Policy was presented.  There was an extensive discussion by the 


Board respecting the objectives of the Board in designing this, or any, complaints policy.  During 


this discussion the following issues were raised: 


 


1. Does the Board want to follow its bylaws for member complaints respecting ADRIA’s 


functions? 


2. For professional conduct/competency complaints does ADRIA have a role or do such 


matters fall under ADRIC (relates to only members with or without designations)? 


3. How should ADRIA be handling public complaints regarding ADRIA? 


4. How should the Board deal with matters of member conduct, i.e. concerning breaches of 


the Code of Ethics and Conduct or the Board’s Bylaws? 


5. Does the Board first need to review and, if necessary, revise the standards to which 


members are currently held (e.g. ADRIC’s Code of Ethics and Conduct which may, in 


some respects, be out of date)? 


6. Is Bylaw number 8 still appropriate or does it need to be revised? 


7. What is the ADRIA/ADRIC interface? 


8. Whether an ADRIA policy should address a disciplinary process including sanctions. 


 


Some agreement was achieved on certain issues: 


- Need to differentiate between membership and professional conduct issues. 







 - 4 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


- There needs to be an examination of a revision of Bylaw number 8 in conjunction with 


the drafting of any complaint policy. 


- The ADRIC Code of Ethics and Conduct needs to be reviewed and revised. 


- There are three possible types or "streams" of complaint: 


1. Conduct complaints concerning members with designation, members without 


designation, and students and others. 


2. Complaints concerning the functions of the Society. 


3. Complaints concerning breach of the Society's by-laws. 


 - There should be one policy, with the three streams as outlined above, with a “triage” 


process at the outset to determine which stream a complaint matter relates to and when 


there is doubt, the stream with the more “robust” policy should apply. 


 -  DRIA by-laws do permit complaints from members of the public.  The by-laws will need 


to be updated to permit ADRIA to deal with conduct issues and impose sanctions. 


 - The Complaints Policy Committee needs to conduct a further review and consideration of 


the matters discussed by the Board. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Stan Galbraith that the Complaints Policy 


Committee should move forward to design a policy which captures the three elements or streams 


of a proper complaint policy and to work with the Governance Committee on an appropriate 


bylaw amendment in time to be brought before the next Annual General Meeting, i.e. by 


April 30.  Approved unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Stan Galbraith and seconded by Deborah Howes that ADRIA request ADRIC to 


update its Code of Ethics and Conduct for its membership. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Barrie Marshall that the above motion be tabled 


to the next meeting to permit Chuck Smith’s input and a fulsome discussion of the matter.  


Approved unanimously.  


 







 - 5 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


3.3 ADRIA Designations Review 


The Committee, Dolores Herman, Joanne Munro, and Mike Hokanson advised that, while no 


written report had been prepared, they, and Elaine Seifert and Tammy Borowiecki, had met and 


discussed the matter of the Q. Med designation in accordance with the Terms of Reference.  


They looked at different provincial standards regarding the Q. Med designation and they agreed 


on certain matters: 


- They saw no need to change the existing 80 hour education requirement. 


- While the ADRIC policy allows ADRIA to set higher qualification standards, ADRIA's 


goal should be to ensure standards that they are appropriate and not so stringent that they 


might send persons interested in obtaining the designation to other provinces. 


- ADRIA should prepare and publish its list of courses and providers that the regional 


review committee has accepted as equivalent training for the Q. Med. And C. Med. 


Designation.  New courses and providers can be added on an on-going basis. 


 


The Committee recommends that, effective April 1, 2014, the standards for Q. Med. In Alberta 


consist of: 


1. Two mock mediations with some definition around what a “mock” mediation is, that 


there be instructions for role players, and that the mock mediation will be supervised by a 


qualified  Roster Reviewer (i.e. a Chartered Mediator from a roster of individuals with 


appropriate qualifications) OR  


2. A formal assessment by a qualified assessor from an assessor roster (i.e. a roster of 


qualified assessors).  Such an assessment would be more rigorous than a mock mediation 


and would remain effective for three years (which is the assessment used for the 


certificate program).  Such assessments could be used as a step toward a C. Med 


designation.  OR 


3. Two actual mediations, paid or unpaid, with a 300 word report (as currently being done 


in Ontario and British Columbia). 


 


The Committee identified that they had discussed the need to identify areas of inconsistencies 


and confusion between the Q. Med and C. Med designations and the need to come up with 


language that is consistent and clear in the ADRIA Q. Med. And C. Med. Information. 


 







 - 6 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman and seconded by Wendy Hassen that the report and 


recommendations of the Designations Committee be accepted with its recommendations 


respecting approval of the qualifications for the Q. Med designation effective as of April 1, 2014.  


Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The adoption of the above qualifications are to be published for the membership in “On Board” 


following the Designations Committee being advised in this regard.  The "On Board" will also 


note that a list of Accredited Courses that qualify for designations will be developed in the future 


and posted on the ADRIA web page. 


 


3.4 AAMS/ADRIA Relations 


Jim Bancroft reported that Eric McAvity is working on a revised Memorandum of 


Understanding ("MOU") AAMS and ADRIA.  All agreed that there be a meeting between 


AAMS and ADRIA to discuss the relationship before the MOU is finalized.  The ED advised 


that it would be important to staff to have guidance, respecting ADRIA's use and application of 


resources, to have a clearer understanding as to what functions are truly those of ADRIA, and 


which are those of AAMS. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Jim Bancroft to propose to Eric McAvity the scheduling of a joint AAMS/ADRIA meeting to 


discuss the relationship between the two Boards and their respective areas of responsibility. 


 


3.5 Director’s and Officer’s Insurance 


This has been largely dealt with as reflected in the exchange of emails attached to these minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to check on whether ADRIA's insurance covers instructors. 


 


3.6 ED Report on New Operational Structure 







 - 7 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


The ED reported on the operational structure, set out in the document attached to these minutes 


and advised that the structure is currently incomplete.  Deborah Howes inquired as to what 


ADRIA currently has in terms of privacy legislation compliance, e.g. a privacy officer and 


privacy policy. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Joanne Munro that the action item 4.5 from the 


meeting minutes dated November 22/23 be carried forward and further discussed at the next 


meeting.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to address and report on the operational structure in the context of ADRIA’s strategic plan 


with input from the Membership and Education Directors. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to prepare a report for the next Board meeting on what ADRIA is doing to comply with 


privacy legislation. 


 


3.7 ADRIC Administration Policy for NGS Programs 


Deborah Howes raised the issue as to whether ADRIA is merely facilitating the delivery or 


actually delivering training in accordance with the National Gold Standard Program designed by 


ADRIA for ADRIC and that there may be some lack of clarity in the Board Motion arising from 


items 5.2 and 7.1 from the minutes of the meeting of November 22/23.  Discussion ensued 


respecting ADRIA’s current involvement in training, ADRIA’s Strategic Plan and its 


relationship with ADRIC in that regard. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It was moved by Dolores Herman and seconded by Wendy Hassen to reconsider Motion 7.1 


from the November 22/23, 2013 Minutes (reproduced below)n relation to ADRIA’s role in this 


Program. 


 7.1 Education Report 







 - 8 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


The Professional Development Manager, Tammy Borowiecki, provided her Education 


Report, attached to these Minutes, and advised that ADRIA had been contracted to design 


a new Gold Standard 40 hour mediation program for ADRIC, that this program is being 


rolled out across Canada in 2014, and that ADRIA would like to incorporate this new 


program into its core mediation training. 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, to approve the proposal 


in principle subject to a review of the revenue sharing arrangements.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It was moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Wendy Hassen to table the motion to 


reconsider at the next meeting so as to allow the ED to provide a report, including a proposal on 


an Alberta model respecting training and delivery and revenue sharing respecting the National 


Gold Standard Program.  Approved unanimously.  


 


3.8  ADRIC Board Minutes 


Board members will read these minutes, if they have not already done so. 


 


3.9 Strategic Plan 


3.9.1  


The ED reviewed the success indicators respecting the previous Strategic Plan and what had 


been achieved in 2013.  The achievements of ADRIA respecting the Strategic Plan are 


summarized in the column “Operational Plan 2013” in the Strategic Plan – As at January 12, 


2013, attached to these minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to investigate the registration numbers outlined in the “Operational Plan 2013” item in 


item 3 (b) of the Strategic Plan. 


 


3.9.2 Revised Strategic Plan with Success Indicators for 2014-2016. 







 - 9 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


The ED reported that she and staff came up with proposed success measures and proposed 


changes with respect to the wording of strategies in the Strategic Plan.  There was also some 


discussion with respect to whether there should be a more formalized process of contacting 


persons whose membership had expired, in addition to Paul Conway’s current practice of 


contacting such individuals, e.g. the use of a formal survey and the possible involvement of 


Board members in this process. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen and seconded by Stan Galbraith to accept the proposed Strategic 


Plan for 2014 – 2016 as presented, including the amendments as proposed by the ED and staff 


including the success indicators.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Strategic Plan is to be published in “On Board” for the benefit of the membership. 


 


3.10 Operational Plan 2014 


Discussed at Agenda Item 3.6. 


 


3.11 Dash Board 


Tabled to next meeting. 


4.0 Reports 


4.1 Treasurer’s Report 


Tabled to next meeting. 


 


4.2 Executive Director’s Report 


The ED discussed the matters raised in her report which is attached to these minutes. 


 


4.2.1 Arbitration Designation Committee 


Don Goodfellow, in his letter of the December 31, 2013, attached to these minutes, indicated that 


he was concerned that the current Designations Committee was not giving sufficient weight to 


the experience of persons applying for an experience equivalency to formal training in obtaining 


their Q. Arb. designation.  The Board concurred that the ADRIC qualifications allow for an 







 - 10 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


experience equivalency and that the Designations Sub-Committee should apply that equivalency 


if requested by qualified candidates. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Barrie Marshall to speak with the Chair of the Designation Sub-Committee, John Welbourn, to 


convey the Board's views respecting the practices of the Designations Committee in terms of the 


approval of the qualifications of applicants.  


 


4.4.2 ADRIA Search and Appoint Fee Schedule 


Tabled to the next meeting. 


 


5.0 New Business 


5.1 2014 Conference/AGM 


The ED reported that a sponsorship letter had been prepared and invited input from Board 


members regarding potential sponsors.  Barrie Marshall asked if a list of the previous sponsors 


could be provided. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to send a copy of the sponsorship letter, and a list of previous sponsors, to Board 


members and to suggest a strategy with respect to the solicitation of potential sponsors for the 


AGM. 


 


5.2.0 Board Governance Issues 


5.2.1 Executive Director Succession 


N.B. Discussions took place in camera.  Jim Bancroft reported that the ED would not be seeking 


a further term and that interviews of Paul Conway and Tammy Borowiecki would be conducted 


in Edmonton on January 27.  The goal is to transition to a new ED by the end of March or early 


April. 


 


5.2.2 Board Member Terms 


Jim Bancroft advised that several Board members, namely Joanne Munro, Jim Bancroft, Chuck 


Smith, and Deborah Howes, are coming to the ends of their terms. 







 - 11 -  


BoD Minutes 18 January 2014 For Board Approval  


ACTION ITEM: 


The Governance Committee reported that the call for nominations to the members must occur 


before the next Board meeting.  The Governance Committee will recommend to the Board the 


names of members of a Nominating Committee and will ensure that such Nominating Committee 


makes recommendations regarding nominations for new Board members by email before the 


April Board meeting.  In addition the Governance Committee will review the nomination process 


and timeline and prepare the Board by-law changes for the next meeting. 


 


5.2.3 Retention of Members 


The Membership Director provided, through the ED, a list of expired memberships.  There was a 


discussion of possible reasons for expired memberships and whether this should be of concern to 


ADRIA. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Board members should review the list and call those individuals they know to determine if those 


individuals intend to renew their memberships and, if not, determine why. 


 


6.0 Round table Evaluation 


The Governance Committee, through Dolores Herman, reported on the results of the Board Self 


Evaluation Survey.  She advised that, with respect to the questions responded to, there were 


some areas reflecting difference of opinion between Board members.   


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Dolores Herman to prepare a summary of the results of the survey and to share those results with 


the Board. 


 


MEETING ADJOURNED: 3:40 p.m., January 18, 2014 


 








 


CORE RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ADRIA REVENUE STREAMS 3.6.1 


 


DESIGNATIONS 


National Applications for 


1. Q. Med. 


2. Q. Arb. 


3. C. Med. 


4. C. Arb. 


Sources of Revenue from: 


Application Fees for designations 


Assessment Fees (Supervised Practice Roleplays for Q. Med. and Assessment for 


C.Med.) 


ADRIA Certificate fee (framed Certificate in Conflict Leadership)  


 


ACCREDITATION 


Sources of Revenue from: 


Application Fees 


1. Educational Courses and Programs (excluding National or Regional 


ownership) 


2. Instructors and Coaches (for specific training programs) 


3. Neighborhood ADR Program (shared amongst municipalities) 


4. Campus ADR Program (per academic institution) 


 


 







MEMBER SERVICES 


Membership Categories 


Directory (App for iPhone, Android, BlackBerry) 


Rosters (Instructors, Coaches, Assessors, Practice Supervisors) 


Newsletter (incl. advertising) 


Outsourcing (Referrals) 


 PADRs for industry (construction, oil & gas) 


Sources of Revenue from: 


1. Membership fee 


2. Directory listing fee 


3. Advertising fee 


4. Outsourcing referral fee 


 


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 


Conference (Speakers) 


Course Design (Mini-Certificates) 


 A) as part of diplomas & degree programs (academic) 


 B) for groups, seminars and workshops (organizations) 


Exclusive License Agreements  


1. ADRIA & ADRIC (Gold Standard Arbitration and Mediation courses) 


2. AAMS (ADR110) 


3. Specialty Courses (where instructors retain ownership of the material) 


Sources of Revenue from: Design fees, Instructor fees, Delivery fees 








BoD Minutes 29 January 2014  


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 29, 2014 


CONFERENCE CALL 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Dolores 


Herman, Q. Med; Deborah Howes, C. Arb; Stan Galbraith, C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.; 


Chuck Smith, Q. Med;  


 


Regrets: Don Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Mike Hokanson, LLB 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 10:30 a.m. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, seconded by Wendy Hassen, that Paul Conway to be retained as 


the new Executive Director, assuming that position from Erica Deines on April 1, subject to 


arriving at satisfactory terms of service with Mr. Conway.  Approved Unanimously. 


 








 


405 – 234 Eglinton Avenue East ● Toronto, Ontario ● Canada M4P 1K5 
Tel/Tél: 416-487-4447 ● Toll-Free/Sans frais: 1-877-475-4353 ● Fax/Télécopieur: 416-487-4429 


admin@adrcanada.ca ● www.adrcanada.ca 
 


 
ADRIC National Gold Standard Dispute Resolution Training Program 


Administration Policy 


 


1. Definitions 


a. “ADRIC” means the ADR Institute of Canada Inc.; 


b. “Approved Trainers” and “Approved Coaches” mean the persons approved to 
deliver Program Courses in accordance with paragraph  3  of this Policy; 


c. “Course Fees” means the fees for Program Courses approved by ADRIC in 
accordance with paragraph 4 of this Policy;  


d. “Program” means the ADR Institute of Canada Inc. National Gold Standard 
Dispute Resolution Training Program established and administered in 
accordance with this Policy; 


e. “Policy” means this Administration Policy;  


f. “Program Course” means any Gold Standard training course delivered as part of 
the Program; 


g. “Region” means any regional affiliate of ADRIC; 


 


2. Program Principles  


a. Beginning with the introductory Mediation Course and the introductory 
Arbitration Course, ADRIC has decided to develop the Program for the use and 
benefit of its Regions. 


b. Persons successfully completing any Gold Standard Program Training Course will 
be permitted to use that training towards the requirements for relevant ADRIC 
designations and/or, in some Regions, training hours required for membership.  


c. Course content and requirements for all courses in the Program shall be created 
through and be maintained by ADRIC. 


d. Subject to the requirements of this Policy, the Course Program(s) may be 
delivered in each Region as the Region decides. 


e. In any event, applications to deliver Program Courses will be administered 
through the region in which the program is to be given, unless the region is 
unable to administer the application, which will then be administered by ADRIC. 


f. The Region shall provide ADRIC with its Regional Board Resolution(s) from time 
to time to reflect the Region’s decision(s) to deliver Program Courses







 


ADR Institute of Canada Inc. – Gold Standard Courses Administration Policy,  Page 2 of 2 


 


3. Approved Trainers and Coaches 


a. Only trainers and coaches approved in accordance with this Policy (the “Approved 
Trainers” and “Approved Coaches”) will be authorized to deliver Program Courses.   


b. ADRIC will develop a process for approval of the trainers and coaches for Program 
Courses. There will be an approval process for each individual Program Course. The 
approval process will include, at a minimum, the following elements: 


 Criteria for credentials required for a person to be considered as a 
trainer, and  


 A training course or evidence of equivalent training experience.   


c. Every Approved Trainer and Approved Coach shall be required to sign an agreement 
that they will not use the Program Course Content for any purpose other than to teach 
that Program Course approved by a Region or ADRIC.  


 


4. Course Fees 


a. Course Fees shall be set from time to time by ADRIC after consultation with the Regions. 


 


5. Responsibilities 


1) The Region shall be responsible for: 


a. Using the nationally branded standard advertising material in any marketing. Program 
Courses delivered in a Region are to be marketed as ADRIC National Gold Standard 
Dispute Resolution Training.  


2)  The Approved Trainer shall be responsible for: 


a. Giving notice of date and location for any Program Course delivered in the Region to 
the Regional Affiliate; 


b. Costs of and arranging for logistics for any Program Course, such as meeting rooms, 
refreshments, audio visual requirements etc;  


c. Requesting the region to circulate standard advertising material with sufficient notice.  


 


6. Revenues 


7. Upkeep and Development Fund 


There shall be an Upkeep,  Development  and Promotion Fund to ensure the upkeep and 
maintenance of existing courses in the Program and to fund national promotion of the Program 
Courses and when possible the development of new courses in the Program. ADRIC will also 
pursue other options for funding for Program development.  


 


8. Taxes 


All amounts are subject to applicable taxes (GST or HST). 








 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 1 of 12 
 


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


SATURDAY JANUARY 18, 2014 


OFFICES OF DAVIS LLP - CALGARY 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Dolores 


Herman, Q. Med; Deborah Howes, C. Arb; Stan Galbraith, C. Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.;  Erika 


Deines. 


Regrets: Chuck Smith, Q. Med; Don Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Mike Hokanson, LLB  


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 8:35 a.m., January 18. 


 


1.0 Welcome 


The President, Jim Bancroft, welcomed the other Board Members, and the Executive Director, 


Erika Deines, to the meeting. 


 


1.2 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


The ED drew to the attention of the Board a list of individuals who had not renewed their 


memberships in 2013.  It was agreed that a discussion should take place with respect to what, if 


any, Board action should be taken respecting these expired memberships.  This was added as 


agenda item 5.2.3 as Retention of Members. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


Deborah Howes suggested that, in the future, that the meeting minutes reflect the discussion or 


rationale surrounding Board motions on policy or new initiatives so that Board members unable 


to attend a particular meeting have a greater understanding of the information and reasoning 


leading to Board Motions.  The ED suggested that supporting information or reports contain a 


better rationale or explanation to aide absent board members and those looking at historical 


minutes.  The Governance Committee suggested when the Board deals with a motion by email 


exchange or teleconference, the record of that business be treated as a separate set of minutes 


which are then ratified at the next Board meeting.  For example, the "Terms of Reference" 


document for the ED Succession Planning Committee, item 4.5 from the meeting of November 


22; the Board voted by email in December; the motion has to be properly minuted.  As a "best 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 2 of 12 
 


practice", the Board's meeting minutes should reflect the time when the Board goes into, and 


emerges from, an "in camera" session.  All reports and other documents tendered for discussion 


at Board meeting should be dated. 


 


ACTION ITEMS: 


Secretary to prepare a new Board meeting minute respecting the email vote of the Board 


concerning the Terms of Reference for the ED Succession Planning Committee. 


 


Secretary to include the time the Board goes into, and emerges from, “in camera” discussions. 


 


All parties submitting documents and reports for consideration by the Board should ensure that 


such materials are properly dated. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to approve the minutes of the 


meeting of November 22/23, 2013.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.0 Actions Arising from Previous Minutes (Old Business) 


3.1 Board Policy Review 


Stan Galbraith had previously agreed to conduct a review, and propose changes to the wording 


of, Board policies and, in particular, financial policies, so as to avoid placing the Executive 


Director and other staff in untenable situations, e.g., requiring the Executive Director and staff to 


achieve financial objectives which may be, due to circumstance, impossible to achieve or 


otherwise beyond the control of the Executive Director and staff.  Mr. Galbraith’s report, 


attached to these minutes, reflects the result of his review and his proposed revisions.  


Amendments suggested by Board members were as follows: 


- Mr. Galbraith’s proposed revision in item 1.1 of his report should be revised such that the 


words “not risking” are replaced by “avoiding”. 


- The proposed revision, in 1.3 of Mr. Galbraith’s report, should be revised to include the 


words “related to finances” at the end of that proposed revision. 


- The proposed revision in item 3.1 of Mr. Galbraith’s report should be revised to replace 


“done” with “made” in the first line. 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 3 of 12 
 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Stan Galbraith, and seconded by Deborah Howes, to amend the Board policies as 


suggested in items 1, 2, and 3 of the report as amended by the revisions noted above. Approved 


unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Joanne Munro, to refer items 4 and 5 in the 


report back to the Governance Committee for further review and consideration.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


3.2 Complaints Policy 


The revised draft Complaints Policy was presented.  There was an extensive discussion by the 


Board respecting the objectives of the Board in designing this, or any, complaints policy.  During 


this discussion the following issues were raised: 


1. Does the Board want to follow its bylaws for member complaints respecting ADRIA’s 


functions? 


2. For professional conduct/competency complaints does ADRIA have a role or do such 


matters fall under ADRIC (relates to only members with or without designations)? 


3. How should ADRIA be handling public complaints regarding ADRIA? 


4. How should the Board deal with matters of member conduct, i.e. concerning breaches of 


the Code of Ethics and Conduct or the Board’s Bylaws? 


5. Does the Board first need to review and, if necessary, revise the standards to which 


members are currently held (e.g. ADRIC’s Code of Ethics and Conduct which may, in 


some respects, be out of date)? 


6. Is Bylaw number 8 still appropriate or does it need to be revised? 


7. What is the ADRIA/ADRIC interface? 


8. Whether an ADRIA policy should address a disciplinary process including sanctions. 


 


Some agreement was achieved on certain issues: 


- Need to differentiate between membership and professional conduct issues. 


- There needs to be an examination of a revision of Bylaw number 8 in conjunction with 


the drafting of any complaint policy. 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 4 of 12 
 


- The ADRIC Code of Ethics and Conduct needs to be reviewed and revised. 


- There are three possible types or "streams" of complaint: 


1. Conduct complaints concerning members with designation, members without 


designation, and students and others. 


2. Complaints concerning the functions of the Society. 


3. Complaints concerning breach of the Society's by-laws. 


 - There should be one policy, with the three streams as outlined above, with a “triage” 


process at the outset to determine which stream a complaint matter relates to and when 


there is doubt, the stream with the more “robust” policy should apply. 


 -  ADRIA by-laws do permit complaints from members of the public.  The by-laws will 


need to be updated to permit ADRIA to deal with conduct issues and impose sanctions. 


 - The Complaints Policy Committee needs to conduct a further review and consideration of 


the matters discussed by the Board. 


 


 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 5 of 12 
 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Stan Galbraith that the Complaints Policy 


Committee should move forward to design a policy which captures the three elements or streams 


of a proper complaint policy and to work with the Governance Committee on an appropriate 


bylaw amendment in time to be brought before the next Annual General Meeting, i.e. by 


April 30.  Approved unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Stan Galbraith and seconded by Deborah Howes that ADRIA request ADRIC to 


update its Code of Ethics and Conduct for its membership. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Barrie Marshall that the above motion be tabled 


to the next meeting to permit Chuck Smith’s input and a fulsome discussion of the matter.  


Approved unanimously.  


 


3.3 ADRIA Designations Review 


The Committee, Dolores Herman, Joanne Munro, and Mike Hokanson advised that, while no 


written report had been prepared, they, and Elaine Seifert and Tammy Borowiecki, had met and 


discussed the matter of the Q. Med designation in accordance with the Terms of Reference.  


They looked at different provincial standards regarding the Q. Med designation and they agreed 


on certain matters: 


- They saw no need to change the existing 80 hour education requirement. 


- While the ADRIC policy allows ADRIA to set higher qualification standards, ADRIA's 


goal should be to ensure standards that they are appropriate and not so stringent that they 


might send persons interested in obtaining the designation to other provinces. 


- ADRIA should prepare and publish its list of courses and providers that the regional 


review committee has accepted as equivalent training for the Q. Med. And C. Med. 


Designation.  New courses and providers can be added on an on-going basis. 


 


The Committee recommends that, effective April 1, 2014, the standards for Q. Med. In Alberta 


consist of: 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 6 of 12 
 


1. Two mock mediations with some definition around what a “mock” mediation is, that 


there be instructions for role players, and that the mock mediation will be supervised by a 


qualified  Roster Reviewer (i.e. a Chartered Mediator from a roster of individuals with 


appropriate qualifications) OR  


2. A formal assessment by a qualified assessor from an assessor roster (i.e. a roster of 


qualified assessors).  Such an assessment would be more rigorous than a mock mediation 


and would remain effective for three years (which is the assessment used for the 


certificate program).  Such assessments could be used as a step toward a C. Med 


designation.  OR 


3. Two actual mediations, paid or unpaid, with a 300 word report (as currently being done 


in Ontario and British Columbia).  OR 


4. Any combination of the above. 


 


The Committee identified that they had discussed the need to identify areas of inconsistencies 


and confusion between the Q. Med and C. Med designations and the need to come up with 


language that is consistent and clear in the ADRIA Q. Med. and C. Med. information. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman and seconded by Wendy Hassen that the report and 


recommendations of the Designations Committee be accepted with its recommendations 


respecting approval of the qualifications for the Q. Med designation effective as of April 1, 2014.  


Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The adoption of the above qualifications are to be published for the membership in “On Board” 


following the Designations Committee being advised in this regard.  The "On Board" will also 


note that a list of Accredited Courses that qualify for designations will be developed in the future 


and posted on the ADRIA web page. 


 


3.4 AAMS/ADRIA Relations 


Jim Bancroft reported that Eric McAvity is working on a revised Memorandum of 


Understanding ("MOU") AAMS and ADRIA.  All agreed that there be a meeting between 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 7 of 12 
 


AAMS and ADRIA to discuss the relationship before the MOU is finalized.  The ED advised 


that it would be important to staff to have guidance, respecting ADRIA's use and application of 


resources, to have a clearer understanding as to what functions are truly those of ADRIA, and 


which are those of AAMS. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Jim Bancroft to propose to Eric McAvity the scheduling of a joint AAMS/ADRIA meeting to 


discuss the relationship between the two Boards and their respective areas of responsibility. 


 


3.5 Director’s and Officer’s Insurance 


This has been largely dealt with as reflected in the exchange of emails attached to these minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to check on whether ADRIA's insurance covers instructors. 


 


3.6 ED Report on New Operational Structure 


The ED reported on the operational structure, set out in the document attached to these minutes 


and advised that the structure is currently incomplete.  Deborah Howes inquired as to what 


ADRIA currently has in terms of privacy legislation compliance, e.g. a privacy officer and 


privacy policy. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Joanne Munro that the action item 4.5 from the 


meeting minutes dated November 22/23 be carried forward and further discussed at the next 


meeting.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to address and report on the operational structure in the context of ADRIA’s strategic plan 


with input from the Membership and Education Directors. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 8 of 12 
 


ED to prepare a report for the next Board meeting on what ADRIA is doing to comply with 


privacy legislation. 


 


3.7 ADRIC Administration Policy for NGS Programs 


Deborah Howes raised the issue as to whether ADRIA is merely facilitating the delivery or 


actually delivering training in accordance with the National Gold Standard Program designed by 


ADRIA for ADRIC and that there may be some lack of clarity in the Board Motion arising from 


items 5.2 and 7.1 from the minutes of the meeting of November 22/23.  Discussion ensued 


respecting ADRIA’s current involvement in training, ADRIA’s Strategic Plan and its 


relationship with ADRIC in that regard. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It was moved by Dolores Herman and seconded by Wendy Hassen to reconsider Motion 7.1 


from the November 22/23, 2013 Minutes (reproduced below) in relation to ADRIA’s role in this 


Program. 


 7.1 Education Report 


The Professional Development Manager, Tammy Borowiecki, provided her Education 


Report, attached to these Minutes, and advised that ADRIA had been contracted to design 


a new Gold Standard 40 hour mediation program for ADRIC, that this program is being 


rolled out across Canada in 2014, and that ADRIA would like to incorporate this new 


program into its core mediation training. 


 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 9 of 12 
 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, to approve the proposal 


in principle subject to a review of the revenue sharing arrangements.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It was moved by Deborah Howes and seconded by Wendy Hassen to table the motion to 


reconsider at the next meeting so as to allow the ED to provide a report, including a proposal on 


an Alberta model respecting training and delivery and revenue sharing respecting the National 


Gold Standard Program.  Approved unanimously.  


 


3.8  ADRIC Board Minutes 


Board members will read these minutes, if they have not already done so. 


 


3.9 Strategic Plan 


3.9.1  


The ED reviewed the success indicators respecting the previous Strategic Plan and what had 


been achieved in 2013.  The achievements of ADRIA respecting the Strategic Plan are 


summarized in the column “Operational Plan 2013” in the Strategic Plan – As at January 12, 


2013, attached to these minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to investigate the registration numbers outlined in the “Operational Plan 2013” item in 


item 3 (b) of the Strategic Plan. 


 


3.9.2 Revised Strategic Plan with Success Indicators for 2014-2016. 


The ED reported that she and staff came up with proposed success measures and proposed 


changes with respect to the wording of strategies in the Strategic Plan.  There was also some 


discussion with respect to whether there should be a more formalized process of contacting 


persons whose membership had expired, in addition to Paul Conway’s current practice of 


contacting such individuals, e.g. the use of a formal survey and the possible involvement of 


Board members in this process. 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 10 of 12 
 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen and seconded by Stan Galbraith to accept the proposed Strategic 


Plan for 2014 – 2016 as presented, including the amendments as proposed by the ED and staff 


including the success indicators.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Strategic Plan is to be published in “On Board” for the benefit of the membership. 


 


3.10 Operational Plan 2014 


Discussed at Agenda Item 3.6. 


 


3.11 Dash Board 


Tabled to next meeting. 


4.0 Reports 


4.1 Treasurer’s Report 


Tabled to next meeting. 


 


4.2 Executive Director’s Report 


The ED discussed the matters raised in her report which is attached to these minutes. 


 


4.2.1 Arbitration Designation Committee 


Don Goodfellow, in his letter of the December 31, 2013, attached to these minutes, indicated that 


he was concerned that the current Designations Committee was not giving sufficient weight to 


the experience of persons applying for an experience equivalency to formal training in obtaining 


their Q. Arb. designation.  The Board concurred that the ADRIC qualifications allow for an 


experience equivalency and that the Designations Sub-Committee should apply that equivalency 


if requested by qualified candidates. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 11 of 12 
 


Barrie Marshall to speak with the Chair of the Designation Sub-Committee, John Welbourn, to 


convey the Board's views respecting the practices of the Designations Committee in terms of the 


approval of the qualifications of applicants.  


 


4.4.2 ADRIA Search and Appoint Fee Schedule 


Tabled to the next meeting. 


 


5.0 New Business 


5.1 2014 Conference/AGM 


The ED reported that a sponsorship letter had been prepared and invited input from Board 


members regarding potential sponsors.  Barrie Marshall asked if a list of the previous sponsors 


could be provided. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to send a copy of the sponsorship letter, and a list of previous sponsors, to Board 


members and to suggest a strategy with respect to the solicitation of potential sponsors for the 


AGM. 


 


5.2.0 Board Governance Issues 


5.2.1 Executive Director Succession 


N.B. Discussions took place in camera.  Jim Bancroft reported that the ED would not be seeking 


a further term and that interviews of Paul Conway and Tammy Borowiecki would be conducted 


in Edmonton on January 27.  The goal is to transition to a new ED by the end of March or early 


April. 


 


5.2.2 Board Member Terms 


Deborah Howes advised that several Board members, namely Joanne Munro, Jim Bancroft, 


Chuck Smith, and Deborah Howes, are coming to the ends of their terms. 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Governance Committee reported that the call for nominations to the members must occur 


before the next Board meeting.  The Governance Committee will recommend to the Board the 


names of members of a Nominating Committee and will ensure that such Nominating Committee 







 


Board of Directors Meeting 18 January 2014 – Approved   Page 12 of 12 
 


makes recommendations regarding nominations for new Board members by email before the 


April Board meeting.  In addition the Governance Committee will review the nomination process 


and timeline and prepare the Board by-law changes for the next meeting. 


 


5.2.3 Retention of Members 


The Membership Director provided, through the ED, a list of expired memberships.  There was a 


discussion of possible reasons for expired memberships and whether this should be of concern to 


ADRIA. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Board members should review the list and call those individuals they know to determine if those 


individuals intend to renew their memberships and, if not, determine why. 


 


6.0 Round table Evaluation 


The Governance Committee, through Dolores Herman, reported on the results of the Board Self 


Evaluation Survey.  She advised that, with respect to the questions responded to, there were 


some areas reflecting difference of opinion between Board members.   


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Dolores Herman to prepare a summary of the results of the survey and to share those results with 


the Board. 


 


MEETING ADJOURNED: 3:40 p.m., January 18, 2014 


 








 


National Gold Standard (Owned by ADRIC) 


(Mediation and  Arbitration) 


  DELIVERED BY: 


 


 


REGIONS ( If they choose)           OR     ADRIC 


 


 


Own Instructors Contract Providers  Combination Model 


(AB Model)  (Ontario Model)  (Own instructors through contractors\Universities\etc.) 


 


 


 








Draft Terms of Reference  Q-MED Designation Review Committee               Page 1 of 2 
 


Terms of Reference - Draft November 22, 2013  
Q-MED Designation Review Committee  


 


Mandate:   


The National Q –Med  Designation has been in place for approximately 5 years.  The ADRIA 
Designations Committee has raised a number of questions with the ADRIA Board regarding 
appropriate application of National Standards, including education requirements and 
assessment of competence.  It is time for a review  to ensure the Q-Med designation is being 
implemented as intended, the integrity of the designation is maintained, and there is ongoing 
value to designation holders and those they serve.   The Q–MED designations committee will 
gather and analyse information; examine present standards and practices, identify areas that 
may need to be improved and options to address them both in regard to ADRIA practices and 
areas to raise and dialogue with ADRIC and other regional partners. 


 Key principles guiding this process are:   


 Consistency: Cconsistent application of designation standards Nationally wherever possible 


 Accessibility:  Encouraging  professionals who use ADR in their practice to pursue Q-Med 
designation to enhance their ADR skills and provide a quality product to their employers 
and clients 


 Quality Assurance:  Q –Med and C-Med designations are different designations both having 
integrity and value to the profession and those they serve 


 Clarity:  Clear guidelines to support consistent, fair and transparent application of Q-med 
standards by ADRIA 


 Collaboration:  Respect that ADRIC is the owner of the Q-med designation and it is  in the 
best interest of ADRIA to work collaboratively with ADRIC and their affiliates to strengthen 
our profession. 


Responsibilities\Tasks:  


1. Consulting with  other regional affiliates and preparing a document comparing  present 
practices in implementation of Q-Med designation across Canada  


2. Consulting with ADRIC and reporting on relevant areas of interpretation of National 
standards 


3. Identifying those areas the committee believes need to be addressed regarding any  
inconsistent application of standards; unclear policies or practices and making appropriate 
distinctions between Q-Med and C-Med designation ( education, assessement, ethics and 
practice expectations) 


4. Identifying options for solutions to address any issues identified  
5. Providing a report and recommended strategy to the ADRIA Board by ????? date  


 


Duration of Committee:  From date of appointment to the delivery of a report and 


recommendations to the ADRIA Board  


Chair of Committee:  ADRIA Board member as appointed by the Board  







Draft Terms of Reference  Q-MED Designation Review Committee               Page 2 of 2 
 


Committee Membership:  At least 2 members appointed by the Board (including the Chair)  


    At least 1 member of the Designations committee  


    11-3 additional members who can bring added perspectives 


    ADRIA staff member overseeing the designations function 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Requirements for Staff Time:   Assist committee in finding meeting space, supporting research 


and report development 


Budget Requirements: Committee costs associated with conference calls ??? 


Reporting of Committee: Interim reports and\or final recommendations   


 


                                                           


 1 This could include Professionals who are currently pursuing Q-Med, and or  have 


achieved their Q-med; ADR Instructors\Assessors;  ADR Policy makers; Q-med 


clients\employers to include all stakeholder perspectives 


 








 


#405 – 234 Eglinton Ave. E.  •  Toronto, Ontario  •  Canada M4P 1K5 
Tel / Tél:  416-487-4733  •  Toll Free / Sans frais:  1-877-475-4353  •  Fax / Télécopieur:  416-487-4429 


admin@adrcanada.ca    •    www.adrcanada.ca*10000000/00049/1443261/v1 


 


In Person Board of Directors Meeting 
 


ADR Institute of Canada 


October 26, 2013 


Intercontinental Conference Centre, Toronto 


 
Present as indicated: X ;  meetings missed ( )  


 


Executive: 


 


X  Glen Bell   X  Mary Comeau     X  Derek Lloyd  


X  Jim Musgrave    X  Jeffrey Smith   


      


Directors: 


  


X Stephen Antle   (1) Thierry Beriault     X Randy Bundus 


X Andy Butt      X Michael Erdle      X Shawn Irving   


X Jim McCartney      X David McCutcheon     X Paul McMullan       


X Louise Novinger Grant    X Chuck Smith   (1) Karim Sunderji               


X Anne Wallace  


 


Staff:  


 


 X Mary Anne Harnick (Secretary)  X Janet McKay  


 


 
1. Call to order 


 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 


2. Welcome  
 


President Jim Musgrave welcomed everyone, including incoming  
Directors Shawn Irving, Paul McMullan and Chuck Smith, and 
returning Director Anne Wallace. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to update and 
Board list and 
circulate. 
 
 
 



mailto:adrcanada@igs.net





3. Agenda 
 
Chuck Smith moved approval of the agenda. Seconded by David 
McCutcheon.  Motion Carried. 
 


4. Election of Officers 
 
Randy  Bundus moved, seconded by Bill Hartnett, approval of the 
2013-14 Executive: 
 
Jim Musgrave  President 
Glen Bell                        Vice President 
Derek Lloyd  Vice President 
Mary Comeau  Vice President 
Jeffrey Smith   Treasurer 
Secretary   Mary Anne Harnick 
 
Motion carried. 
 


5. Board Minutes  
 
Jim McCartney moved approval of the minutes of September 3, 
2013. Seconded by Stephen Antle. Motion Carried. 
 


6. Executive Minutes 
 
The Executive minutes of September 26, 2012 were accepted as 
information. 
 


7. Treasurer’s Report 
 
Treasurer Jeffrey Smith provided an update on the finances to 
date.   
 
There then followed a discussion on whether conference 
sponsors should be entitled to receive a list of conference 
attendees.  It was agreed that the ED would make inquiries with 
outside counsel concerning how this might be accomplished 
without infringing privacy rules. 
 
8. Executive Director’s Report 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to solicit opinion 
from ADRIC’s 
outside counsel and 
report to the Board, 
including any 
proposed updates to 
the ADRIC privacy 
policy. 







a. Conference 
  
 Detailed report to be provided. 
 


b. Resolutions enacted by the Board:  
  


Resolution 2013-2:  
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE INCREASE IN COST OF LEASEHOLDS 
 
The Board has approved the Executive’s recommendation and 
agreed to increase the size of the existing ADRIC office by 438 
square feet, with a resulting increase in monthly rent of $484.15 
(all-in, including HST), subject to (a) ADRIO paying the same 
increased monthly rent, (b) the landlord covering the cost of all 
renovations at the landlord’s sole cost, and (c) a lease 
amendment satisfactory in form to the President and the 
Executive Director. 


 
Resolution 2013-3  
RESOLUTION RE: RECORDING OF CONFERENCE SESSIONS  
 
The Board has approved the Executive’s recommendation and 
agreed to proceed (on a “test basis” for 2013) with recording 
eight (8) sessions at the 2013 national conference, at an 
aggregate cost of $9,000 (including HST and one year of hosting), 
with these recordings to be priced, pre-sold at the conference 
and sold afterwards in various ways, subject to review and 
recommendations from the Executive Director based on this 
experience, well ahead of the 2014 national conference. 
 
Resolution 2013-4  
RESOLUTION RE PURCHASE OF WEBCAM 
 
The Board has approved the Executive’s recommendation to split 
equally the cost of a $3,200 plus applicable taxes webcam with 
ADRIO. The ADRIC cost will therefore be $1,600.00 plus 
applicable taxes. 
   


c. Training Task Force 
 


All policies and forms have been approved by the Training Task 
Force. To date, members of the Task Force have reviewed the 


 
 
Janet McKay to 
provide conference 
report for November 
22 Executive 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Mediation Course and provided feedback to ADRIA.   
 


The Arbitration Course and the two (2) Train-the-Trainer Courses 
have not yet been provided to the Task Force. 


 
a. Elder Co-ordination Task Force 


 
Our representative, Resa Eisen, has had a death in the family. 
The ED hopes to receive an update from her on the Elder Co-
ordination Task Force for the next Board meeting 
 


b. Toronto Commercial Arbitrators Society 
 
Morgan Horst has been asked to prepare a plan and quote for 
how we might perform the invoicing for TCAS. 
 


c. Chartered Institute of Arbitrators 
 
Doug Cutbush of The U.K. organization Chartered Institute of 
Arbitrators has inquired about the possibility of our doing 
administration for CIA when and if they open a Canadian Branch.  
 
It was suggested that CIA are, in fact, competitors and caution 
should be exercised with respect to providing administrative 
services.  
 
It was agreed that the question of developing a relationship with 
CIA should be referred to the Executive Committee. 


 
d. Surveys 


 
To be discussed as part of the Strategic Plan.  
 


e. Technology Improvements Including Online Applications 
 


The ED provided a list of “tweaks” and estimated costs for each, 
required to customize the technology to perform ADRIC’s 
administration more efficiently.  


 
Jeffrey Smith suggested that an IT professional should be added 
to the IT committee to assist with future planning. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to follow up on 
report for Elder Co-
ordination Task 
Force. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to research and 
provide 
recommendations 
to the Executive for 
consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IT professional to be 
added to IT 
committee to help 







f. National C.Med  and C.Arb Audit and Appeal 
Committees - to be appointed 
 


g. AIF Tax Return 
 
The accountants have reported that they are "trying to 
determine if it would be best for AIF to file the return under the 
Voluntary Disclosure Program."  The accountants advise that 
"there are various  benefits and risks from doing this".  At the 
end of the day, the returns will be filed but they want to 
minimize any potential penalties or future liabilities the trust 
would be exposed to. ED continues to follow up on this matter. 


 
h. Marketing Committee 


 
Co-Chairs Jim McCartney and Bill Hartnett met to discuss 
developing a proposal for funds from AIF for the ADR 
Perspectives e-newsletter for corporate consumers, as suggested 
by the AIF trustees. The Co-Chairs indicated that they would 
work on a proposal once they were in receipt of quotes and cost 
estimates for the first year including marketing costs. ED agreed 
to provide these costs. 


 
Bill Hartnett reported that he is aware of senior practitioners 
interested in serving on the editorial board.  
 


i. TCAS booth at ICCA Conference 
  
Follow-up with David McCutcheon. 
 


9. Regional Updates 
 
 
British Columbia 
 
Glen Bell advised that the Q.Arb is very popular in British 
Columbia, and has given e members a new reason to join.  
Ongoing initiatives in British Columbia include: 
 


 An ethics advisory panel  


 Expanded training programs as a result of the new Family 
Law Act 


anticipate future 
needs. 
 
 
 
ED to continue 
follow-up with 
accountants. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to provide 
Marketing Co-Chairs 
with cost estimates 
and marketing costs 
for first year of e-
newsletter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to follow up with 
David McCutcheon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 Creation of a Certified Family Arbitrators designation that 
has been granted to half a dozen members 


 Training in arbitration principles for parenting 
coordinators. 


 
Alberta 
 
Chuck Smith advised that Alberta has successfully navigated 
some rough waters and created the ADR Institute of Alberta, 
transferring all charitable activities to AAMS. A new board of 
directors was elected at the 2013 AGM, with Jim Bancroft as 
President. They have separate executive directors for each of 
AAMS and ADRIA. 
 
Strategic planning includes expanding into human resources and 
work on  the National Training Programs. 
 
Saskatchewan 
 
Scott Siemens reported that turnover on the ADR Saskatchewan 
board has resulted in renewal, with increased leverage through 
Brenda Lesperance. ADR Saskatchewan has presented training 
sessions on facilitation that have led to increased membership.  
 
Current initiatives include: 
 


 Contract relationship with Metis to administer appeal 
program relating to Metis status 


 Consideration of a class of corporate members where 
employers may have multiple potential members 


 Developing relationship with Collaborative Law 
Association of Saskatchewan. 


 
Manitoba 
 
Paul McMullan reported on the work being done by the new 
board of the ADR Institute of Manitoba (or “ADRIM”).  The new 
board is seeking a level of parity between arbitrators and 
mediators to ensure both communities are well served.  
 
ADRIM will select the administrative services they require from 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ADRIC. 
 
Derek Lloyd asked if the assets of AMIM would be transferred to 
ADRIM. While there have been some verbal assurances from the 
AMIM president that some $8,000 now with AMIM would be 
transferred to ADRIM, the outcome is uncertain.  
 
Jim McCartney moved and Bill Hartnett seconded a motion 
authorizing the Executive to provide ADRIM with $5,000 on 
receipt of a plan of action and budget from the ADRIM board. 
Motion approved, Paul McMullan abstaining. 
 
Jim McCartney moved and Bill Hartnett seconded a motion to 
issue a demand for payment of the $8,000 from AMIM. Motion 
approved, Paul McMullan abstaining.  
 
After much debate, Jeffrey Smith moved, and Bill Hartnett 
seconded, a motion to continue the national fee holiday until 
July 1, 2014 and invoice members for 50% of the national fee 
from July 1 to December 31, 2014. Motion carried with 2 
opposed and Paul McMullan abstaining. 
 
Ontario 
 
Michael Erdle reported that ADRIO membership (including 
associate, retired and student members) is now over 1000. 
 
Based on surveys and focus groups involving ADRIO members 
and others in the ADR Community, ADRIO has concluded that 
branding and increased awareness, not only of ADRIO but of ADR 
generally, is a priority.  
 
Ontario is working on a strategic plan. It was agreed that the 
Ontario and ADRIC strategic plans should be exchanged upon 
completion. 
 
IMAQ 
 
David McCutcheon reported that the ADRIC/IMAQ relationship is 
very positive and there is tremendous potential for increased 
membership in Quebec. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$5000 to be 
provided to ADRIM  
on receipt of plan of 
action and budget. 
 
Jim Musgrave to 
demand $8,000 
from AMIM, 
worded as a 
reminder. 
 
Manitoba members 
to be charged 
national fees for 
half year as of July 
1, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADRIO and ADRIC to 
exchange strategic 
plans upon 
completion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







David McCutcheon moved, and Bill Hartnett seconded, a motion 
to approve the proposal memorandum and MOU between 
ADRIC and IMAQ provided in the Board Package. Motion 
approved. 
 
ADR Atlantic 
 
Andy Butt reported that ADR Atlantic has increase from 35 in 
2007 to 100 last year at this time and is now at 125. The increase 
in fees has not had a negative impact on membership.  
 
ADR Atlantic currently has 45 members with designations and 25 
applications to process. 


 
ADR Atlantic continues to draw people to various locations by 
providing strong professional activities with an increase in 
membership each time. 
 


10. Meeting Schedule and Winter Meeting in Toronto 
 
The meeting schedule was provided in the Board package. 
 
It was agreed that the winter meeting would take place in 
Toronto January 23-25, 2014. 
 
It was agreed that ADRIC 2014 would take place in Quebec. 
 


11. Strategic Planning 
 
The Strategic Plan will be the principal topic at the January 
meeting. 
 


12. New By-Laws 
 
Randy Bundus moved, and Derek Lloyd seconded, a motion to 
approve the updated By-Laws in principle.  Motion approved. 
 
Randy Bundus moved, and Derek Lloyd seconded, a motion to 
approve the articles of continuance.   Motion approved. 
 


13. National Gold Standard Courses 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Winter Meeting 
dates: January 23-
25, 2014. 
 
ED to open 
conversations with 
conference planning 
committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to work with 
Randy Bundus re 
plan for member 
approval of by-laws, 
filing notice of 
continuance etc. 
 
 
 







Anne Wallace expressed her thanks to Mary Satterfield, who 
chaired the Training Task Force in Ms. Wallace's absence, and 
who will continue to act as Co-Chair of the Task Force with Anne 
Wallace. 
 
ADRIC is in receipt of both the Mediation Course and the 
Arbitration Course, a mock-up advertisement to publicize the 
courses as they are given, and a Trainer’s Workbook. The 
Training Orientation Manual is almost finished. Training forms 
and policies have been finalized and approved. 
 
The Training Orientation and advertising piece will be completed 
in the next few weeks. 
 
Regional affiliates will have to decide if the affiliate will deliver 
the programs, if the affiliate will license trainers to deliver the 
programs, or if the region wants to have the course delivered by 
an institutional trainer such as a university or community college. 
 
Next steps include completion of the following so that first 
delivery of courses can take place in late Spring 2014.  
 


 Communicating the availability of the courses to the 
regions so regions can publicize courses to members  who 
may then apply to be trainers 


 Offer the mandatory Training Orientation, which will be 
available on-line at a specified time.  


 
It was suggested that courses offered by IMAQ should also be 
considered Gold Standard courses. 
 


14. Arbitration Cases 
 
Jim McCartney moved, and Bill Hartnett seconded, a motion not 
to allow administration of the National Arbitration Rules to be 
delegated to affiliates. Motion approved. 
 
ED will investigate ADRIC’s ability to appoint an arbitrator within 
24 hours in emergencies. The Board will then decide if it wishes 
to provide those services.   
 


15. Adjournment 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED to communicate 
decision re 
delegation of 
administration to 
Rules Committee 
 
ED to determine if 
ADRIC has capacity 
to appoint 







 
The meeting adjourned at 2:00 p.m. ET. 
 
 
 
 


Arbitrator in 24 
hours.  ED will 
report to the Board. 
 
 


 








DRAFT December 16, 2013    Page 1 of 5 


 


ADRIA STRATEGIC PLAN 2013 –2015 
As at January 12, 2013 


With Vision and Mission changes Sept 28, 2013 
 


VISION: 
ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - 
recognized for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 


MISSION:  To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by:  


• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices  
• Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta  
• Providing excellence in (high quality?)  ADR  professional development  
• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  
• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations for the ADR profession 
• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
 
OUR VALUES: The guiding principles of ADRIA are based on innovation, creativity, change, and added value in conflict 
resolution:  


Excellence: We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new ideas and 


developments and seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the bar in everything we do. 


Uncompromising Ethics We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation. 


Collaboration:   We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others we can reach 


our goals. We embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new relationships. We welcome opportunities to leverage our 


resources through partnering.   


Accountability: We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others. 


Leadership: We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our organization, even though 


the path may be difficult. We recognize it is only through trying new ideas and learning from our failures that we can grow and move 
forward.  







DRAFT December 16, 2013    Page 2 of 5 


 


  
STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


OPERATIONAL PLAN 
2013 


1. Enhance 
the 
Awarene
ss, 
reputatio
n of and 
access 
to ADR  
services  


 


a. Forge strategic 1partnerships with government, 
courts, schools, businesses and other associations to 
support ADRIA members in working, teaching and 
coaching in the ADR field 


2 new partnerships 
(Example Municiplities)  
in each of 2013, 2014 
and 2015 


Started: Provincial 
Neighborhood Mediation 
program 


Done: Professional 
Homebuilders Institute 
(PHBI) prof.dev.program 


b. Increase the value of ADRIA membership to ADR 
professionals and industry leaders 


Increase the number of 
ADRIA members by 17% 
in 2013. 


Increase from 435 to 470 
members = 8 % 


Attended 8 conferences 
(ADRIC, DRN, HRIA, 
ADRIA, AFM, People For 
People, Career & 
Employment Fair, ACB) 


Member Services 
Director presented at 2 
Conferences (ADRIA 
and AB Congress Board) 


c. Develop and implement a roster development plan with 
defined deliverables 


ADRIA administers 4 
rosters by end of 2013   


CAMVAP 
BBB 
Instructor Roster 
Coaches Roster 


d. Strengthen our partnerships with ADRIC and other 
ADR organizations to promote the practice of ADR  


2013 – at least 1 
initiative with ADRIC, 
and 1 with AAMS plus 2 
others 


Started: plan for 
ADRIC/ADRIA 
accreditation of 
programs and instructors  


Done: AAMS cost-
revenue sharing 
agreement for ADR110 


Started: PMAST 


                                                           
1 A partnership is an arrangement where parties agree to cooperate to advance their mutual interests 







DRAFT December 16, 2013    Page 3 of 5 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


OPERATIONAL PLAN 
2013 


partnership to deliver 
ADR educ. In schools, to 
parent councils, teacher 
training (at Concordia) 


Started: ABFI & ADRIA 
partnership in cross-
educating members 


2. Strength
en our 
Professi
on  


a. Continue to work with ADRIC to support development 
& delivery of National Mediation and Arbitration 
education Programs for entry into the profession.  


Complete current 
initiatives\contracts  with 
ADRIC in 2013.  


At least 1 new initiative 
in 2014. 


Done: National Gold 
Standard (NGS) 
Mediation and Arbitration 
40-hour programs 
delivered to ADRIC 


Ongoing: Trainer 
Orientation design and 
delivery for NGS prgrms. 


b.  Develop Partnerships with universities and colleges 
to integrate ADRIA accredited Appropriate Dispute 
Resolution courses into their Certificate and Degree 
programs.  


1 Partnership in place in 
2013 and 1  in 2014 


Done: Signed agreement 
with Red Deer College 


Started: Discussions with 
MacEwan University 
(NGS Arbitration) 


Started: Discussions with 
Athabasca University 
(NGS prgrms – online 
conversion) 


c.  Increase partnerships with professional and industry 
associations to create and accredit ADR courses for 
their  Certification programs that will  lead to Q.Med 
designations 


2 courses accredited in 
2013 ( homebuilders and 
HRIA) and at least 1 
more  partnership in 
2014 


Done:  


PHBI Com & Neg,  


HRIA Certificate 


d. Promote the value of ADRIC designations with 
organizations and the public who access Appropriate 
Dispute Resolution services 


Increase the # of 
coaches and instructors 
with designations in 
2013  


Done: 100 % (with minor 
exceptions for Specialty 
Instructors) 


 







DRAFT December 16, 2013    Page 4 of 5 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


OPERATIONAL PLAN 
2013 


3. Increase 
the 
number 
of ADRIA 
MEMBE
RS 
across 
Alberta  


a. Increase access and value of designations to targeted 
groups to build membership (See # 1a - 2a & c) 


At least 1 group targeted 
and a strategy 
implemented for  Q-Med 
in 2013 and Q-Arb in 
2014 


Started: HRIA members 
(PD points) 


 


b. Develop and implement a plan for increasing ADRIA 
profile and service delivery in centers with a high 
percentage of ADR professionals who are not 
members of ADRIA  


Plan developed in 2013 
and increase 
Calgary\Southern 
Alberta members by at 
least 40  


Increase in number of 
students attending 
courses in Southern 
Alberta in 2013 


Started: Community 
Mediation Calgary 
project (outsourcing ADR 
professionals for-profit) 


 
2012: 351 Edmonton 
          122 Calgary 
 
2013: 220 Edmonton 
          148 Calgary/South 


4. Strength
en the 
long 
term 
sustaina
bility of 
ADRIA 
as an 
organiza
tion 


a.  Develop and  implement a mid- to long-term  revenue 
stream strategy and targets for ADRIA founded upon 
1-3 above 


Line of credit paid off on 
schedule- 2013 


 


A reserve is created in 
2014 to cover hard costs 


 


Membership revenues 
(non- Education) cover 
hard costs 


2/3 of loan repaid to 
AAMS ($20,000 of 
$30,000 loan) 
 
A reserve was created 
and $ 20,000 GIC 
established 


Started:  


increase in Members 


increase in Corporate 
Membership fee  


increase in the number 
of Designation (39) 
applications (19 Q.Med., 
10 C.Med., 7 Q.Arb., 3 
C.Arb.) 


 







DRAFT December 16, 2013    Page 5 of 5 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets) 


OPERATIONAL PLAN 
2013 


b.  Develop and implement an effective mid-term 
organizational structure and human resources plan 
that aligns with 1-3 above  


A structure for 
operational leadership is 
implemented in 2013 


Done: 


Mission-Vision-Values 


Strategic Plan 2014-16 


Operational Plan 2014 


Budget 2014 


Ongoing: Human 
Resource Restructure 


 Executive 
Director (21hrs) 


 Member Services 
Director (25hrs) 


 Professional         
Development 
Manager (25hrs) 


 Executive 
Assistant (28hrs) 


 Education 
Assistant (hrs as 
needed) 


 IT Assistant (hrs 
as needed) 


 Bookkeeper 
(10hrs) 


 CAMVAP 
Coordinator (full-
time staff) 


 Term contractors 
(ad hoc) – project 
specific 


 








DRAFT January 10, 2014    Page 1 of 4 


 


ADRIA STRATEGIC PLAN 2015 –2016? 
Board changes November 22, 2013 


VISION  


ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - 
recognized for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 


MISSION:  To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by:  


• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices  
• Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta  
• Providing excellence in ADR  professional development  
• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  
• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations for the ADR profession 
• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
 
OUR VALUES: The guiding principles of ADRIA are based on innovation, creativity, change, and added value in conflict 
resolution:  


Excellence: We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new ideas and 


developments and seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the bar in everything we do. 


Uncompromising Ethics We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation. 


Collaboration:   We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others we can reach 


our goals. We embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new relationships. We welcome opportunities to leverage our 


resources through partnering.   


Accountability: We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others. 


Leadership: We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our organization, even though 


the path may be difficult. We recognize it is only through trying new ideas and learning from our failures that we can grow and move 
forward. 


  







DRAFT January 10, 2014    Page 2 of 4 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets)  


1. Enhance the 
value,  awareness, 
reputation of and 
access to ADR  
services 


 


a. Forge strategic 1partnerships with government, courts, schools, 
businesses and other associations to support ADRIA members in 
working, teaching and coaching in the ADR field 


 
2 new partnerships (Example 
Municipalities) per year 


b. Increase the value of ADRIA membership to ADR professionals 
and industry leaders 


Increase Corporate 
membership earning by 10k 
per year 


c. Develop and implement a roster development plan with defined 
deliverables 


 
ADRIA administers 3 new 
rosters  per year   


d. Strengthen our partnerships with ADRIC and other ADR 
organizations to promote the practice of ADR  


 
4 new initiatives per year 


2. Strengthen our 
Profession  


a. Continue to work with ADRIC to support development & delivery 
of National Mediation and Arbitration education programs for entry 
into the profession  


 


1  new initiative  or milestone 
per year 


b. Develop Partnerships with universities and colleges to offer 
ADRIA programs. and to integrate ADRIA accredited Appropriate 
Dispute Resolution courses into their Certificate and Degree 
programs.  


 


1 partnership per year  


c. Integrate ADRIA accredited ADR courses into college and 
university certificate, diploma and degree programs 


1 new initiative per year 


c.d. Increase partnerships with professions and occupations to create 
and accredit ADR courses for their  Certification programs that will 
lead to Q.Med designations  


 


2 initiatives per year 


                                                           
1 A partnership is an arrangement where parties agree to cooperate to advance their mutual interests 







DRAFT January 10, 2014    Page 3 of 4 


 


STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION  


STRATEGIES 
 


Success Indicators  
(Targets)  


d.e. Promote the value of ADRIC designations with organizations and 
the public who access ADR services 


4 promotional initiatives per 
year  


3. Strengthen ADRIA 
as a Membership 
Organization  


(formerly: Increase the 


number of ADRIA 


MEMBERS across Alberta) 


a.  Increase access and value of designations to targeted groups to 
build membership  


2 groups targeted  per year for 
Q.Med and Q.Arb designations  


 


 


1 profile initiative per region 
per year 


 


 


1 target per quarter 


 


Increase ADRIA membership 
by  10% annually  


 


b.  Develop and implement a plan for increasing ADRIA profile and 
service delivery in centers with a high percentage of ADR 
professionals who are not members of ADRIA 


 


c.  Develop and implement a plan to attract ADR professionals\ 
practitioners who are not members of ADRIA 


d.  Increase ADRIA membership across Alberta  


4. Strengthen the 
long term 
sustainability of 
ADRIA as an 
organization 


a. Develop and  implement a mid- to long-term  revenue stream 
strategy and targets for ADRIA 


Line of credit paid off on 
revised schedule 


 


A reserve is created in 2014  
and increases by 20k per year 


 


1-2 revenue generating 
member services initiatives per 
year 


b. Develop and implement an effective mid-term organizational 
structure and human resources plan that aligns with 1-3 above  


An HR structure for operational 
leadership and member 
support is fully implemented in  
2014 







DRAFT January 10, 2014    Page 4 of 4 


 


 








DRAFT
 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through December 2013


Better/(Worse)


Jan - Dan Budget than Budget % of Budget


Income


Membership Fees Net of ADRIC 91,020 109,690 (18,670) 83%


Other Membership Services 77,251 91,175 (13,924) 85%


Professional Development 566,379 591,410 (25,031) 96%


Designation 14,750 5,200 9,550 284%


Accreditation 395 7,350 (6,955) 5%


Other Income 1,831 1,720 111 106%


Total Income 751,626 806,545 (54,919) 93%


Expense


Member Services 17,442 17,830 388 98%


Professional Development 281,783 328,590 46,807 86%


Designation 4,234 2,000 (2,234) 212%


Operations 387,736 409,658 21,922 95%


Board of Directors 12,202 15,675 3,473 78%


Total Income 703,397 773,753 70,356 91%


Net Income 48,229 32,792 15,437 147%


 Page 1 of 1








ADR Institute of Alberta


ACTUAL


Revenue and Expenses


2013


Member 
Services


23%


Professional 
Development


74%


Designations
2%


Accreditation
0%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


2%


Professional 
Development


40%


Designations
1%


Operations
55%


Board of 
Directors


2%


EXPENSES


Report 3








ADR Institute of Alberta


BUDGET


Revenues and Expenses


2013


Member 
Services


25%


Professional 
Development


74%


Designations
1%


Accreditation
1%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


2%


Professional 
Development


43%


Designations
0%


Operations
53%


Board of 
Directors


2%


EXPENSES


Report 3








 


C0184749.v1 


TREASURER’S REPORT      4.1.3 


 My report was delayed somewhat to allow for yearend reporting as it didn’t make sense to 


speak to November 30 numbers when reasonably reliable year end numbers were available.. 


 


 The year-end numbers are currently in DRAFT form only.  The statements should be finalized in 


the next couple of weeks when we receive the estimate for the 2013 audit from the accountant.  


The expense has been estimated but when we receive the actual figures it may be a few 


thousand dollars higher. 


 


 All financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 Efforts to come up with a “dashboard” style financial picture to get distributed with reference to 


our strategic plan will continue after the strategic plan, targets and success indicators are 


finalized.  Paul and I have been speaking about this and we will have this in place prior to the 


next meeting. 


 


 As the reporting here is based on year-end  numbers, they speak to a precise point in time and 


reference percentages of the budget.  Furthermore, they reference last year’s budget which had 


a fairly different focus and direction.  On this basis, the use of a dashboard comparison  vis a vis 


the 2013 budget for the year end numbers wouldn’t really speak to overall performance and 


would not be particularly instructive for consideration for next year’s budget either. 


 


 The pie chart shows where we ended up for the year.  It does not cross reference the budget 


numbers for 2013. 


FINANCIAL COMMENTS 


 The Budget v. Actual for the year end shows membership services falling short of projected 


numbers.  We previously discussed some of these issues being related to the difficulties with the 


website over the summer and fall following the move.  The suggestion is that last year’s budget 


may have also been overly optimistic about increases in memberships towards the end of the 


year (in Q3 and Q4 particularly).  I am advised that the team believes that the projections for 


this year and the 2014 budget are more realistic.. 


 


 We need to keep in mind that during the summer months the focus on the ED team was one of 


survival as opposed to building and expanding.  Now that the storms have passed, we should 


have a better indication of where we are moving and it is anticipated that the 2014 budget does 


that. 


 







 


C0184749.v1 


 Memberships made a recovery towards the end of the year, largely due to the offer to have  


people extend their memberships at the 2013 rate.  This may have the effect of “poaching” 


some of the early revenue associated with memberships for 2014but results in the organization 


having more cash in hand.  This may be offset by doing a similar “push” at the end of 2014.  This 


would have the effect of covering any “poaching” effect by continuing the process.  Essentially it 


will just shift some of the revenues from one year to the previous year. 


 


 Accreditation was also down based on the budgetary figures. 


 


 Offsetting the downsides referenced above was the uptick in designation revenues.  The 


expenses were also higher but that was more than made up for by the revenue increases. 


 Over the last year, much of the expenditures of the organization have been met by spending 


deferred revenue as opposed to cash reserves.  This was by necessity as the cash reserves were 


not there.  Presently, the cash reserves have increased to the point where the deferred revenue 


does not need to be used to the same extent in order to meet expenditures.  This is a positive 


trend which needs to be sustained. 








ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA TEMPLATE                            Page 1 of 3 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 


Friday, January 17, 2014   7:00 PM (Chinese Restaurant the Silver Dragon) 


and 


Saturday, January 18, 2014  8:30 AM 


at Davis LLP offices 


Suite 1000, 250 – 2nd Street SW 


CALGARY, AB 


 


Time  # Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


8:30 am 1.0 WELCOME & AGENDA REVIEW   Chair  


8:30 am 1.1 Welcome   ALL  


8:35 am 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any 


items  


Review and 


Amend 


ALL  


8:45 am 2.0 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  Chair  


8:45 am 2.1  Review & Adoption of Previous  Board 


Meeting Minutes  


Review and 


Adopt 


ALL 2.1 


8:50 am 3.0  ACTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS 


MEETINGS (Old Business)  


 ALL  


8:50 am 3.1 (7.3) Board Policy Review Update Stan 3.1 


9:00 am 3.2 (4.3) Complaints Policy Report Joanne 3.2 


9:20 am 3.3 (4.1) ADRIA  Designations Review 


Committee 


Report / 


Proposal 


Joanne, Mike, 


Dolores 


See ToR in 


SharePoint 


folder 


‘Board 


Committee 


ToR’ 


9:40 am 3.4 (4.4) AAMS / ADRIA  relations MoU Mike  


9:50 am 3.5 (4.7) Directors and Officers Insurance Info Erika 3.5 







ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA TEMPLATE                            Page 2 of 3 
 


9:55 am 3.6 (4.5) ED Report on new operational 


structure 


 Erika 3.6 


3.6.1 


10:05 am 3.7 (5.2) and (7.1) ADRIC Administration Policy 


for NGS programs 


ADRIC 


Protocol 


Erika 3.7 


10:10 am 3.8 (5.3) ADRIC Board Minutes October 2013   3.8 


10:20 am  BREAK  ALL  


10:35 am 3.9 Strategic Plan  ALL  


10:35 am 3.9.1 Strategic Plan for 2013-2015 Update Erika 3.9.1 


10:55 am 3.9.2 


 


Revised Strategic Plan with Success 


Indicators for 2014-2016 


Motion 


 


Erika 3.9.2 


11:15 am 3.10 


 


 


 


 


Operational Plan 2014 Info Erika See 


SharePoint 


document: 


ADRIA Strat. 


& Op. Plan: 


Draft  Jan. 9/ 


2014 


11:25 am 


 


3.11 Dashboard Info Erika 3.11 


11:35 am 4.0 REPORTS    


11:35 am 4.1 Treasurer Report Report Mike 4.1 


4.1.1 


11:45 am  LUNCH  ALL  


12:15 pm 4.2 Executive Director Report Report Erika 4.2 


12:30 pm 4.2.1 Arbitration Designation Committee  Erika 4.2.1 


12:45 pm 4.2.2 ADRIA Search & Appoint Fee schedule  Erika 4.2.2 


12:55 pm 5.0 NEW BUSINESS    







ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA TEMPLATE                            Page 3 of 3 
 


1:00 pm 5.1 2014 Conference/AGM ALL Erika 5.1 


1:15 pm 6.0 OTHER ITEMS     


1:15 pm 6.1     


1:20 pm 7.0  BOARD CALENDAR REVIEW     


1:20 pm 7.1 June 20-21 


September 26-27 


   


1:30 pm 8.0  NEXT MEETING     


1:30 pm  Date: April 11, 12, 2014 
Time:  
Location: Edmonton or Fort McMurray 


   


1:40 pm 9.0  ROUNDTABLE EVALUATION     


1:40 pm      


2:00 pm 10.0 ADJOURN    


 








EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT: 
 
January 2014  
 
Following the organizational restructuring from being a Charity to a Not-for-profit organization in 
September of 2012, the next few months were taken up with legal and administrative work to bring the 
organization into compliance with government regulation, membership transfers, staffing contracts,  
educational material updates, website changes, amendments to leases and contracts, and banking 
authorities. By March of 2013, a draft Strategic Plan introducing a new business model was prepared for 
Board approval. The following is a chronological sequence of events after March 2013: 
  
APRIL 


 Strategic Plan – approved by the Board of Directors 
 Operational Plan and Budget finalized 
 Membership Coordinator resigned 
 Temp was hired on short-term 
 Search for new office space, successful discussions with Concordia University  


MAY 
 Preparation started for AGM and Conference (Committee support, Calgary) 
 Speakers were finalized  
 Both Executive Directors, Membership and Education, terminated employment per May 31  


(new business structure calls for one ED) 
 Search Committee interviewed potential candidates for sole Executive Director position 
 Office Move preparation - weekly meetings with Project Coordinator (volunteer)  
 Office clean-up including excess furniture and equipment disposal 
 New office inspected and necessary repairs/clean-up undertaken 
 New equipment researched and purchased (telephone system, photocopier) 


JUNE 
 Executive Director Education rehired as sole Executive Director on contract 
 AGM and Conference - target of 100 attendees was reached  
 Office move by staff and professional movers (office was closed for 2 days) 
 Internet and Telephone Service disruptions by service providers 


(Shaw unable to locate cable for 2 weeks; Telus waiting for Allstream to release telephone lines 
– delay incurred despite our request for these services 6 weeks in advance) 


JULY 
 Classroom: Electronic equipment, tables and chairs, from old location dismantled and moved 


into storage 
 Education Coordinator resigned, following a workplace incident (and after mediation was held) 


AUGUST 
 New Membership Director was introduced in early August, started in late August 
 Temp failed to report to work while ED away for 2 weeks 
 New Professional Development Manager started mid August 
 New Executive Assistant was hired on contract (cross-training for CAMVAP) 
 Unable to process course registrations and membership renewals (no revenue for 2 weeks) 
 Organizing Instructor and Coaches Retreat and In-service in Sylvan Lake 


SEPTEMBER 
 CAMVAP Coordinator on 2 week vacation 
 All-day Instructor and Coaches Retreat incl. professional development workshops 
 Deadline for Designation applications (received 39 applications) 







 Ongoing troubleshooting with web service provider over membership and course registration 
errors 


 New Registration Coordinator hired on contract 
 Volunteers helping with backlog (certificates, filing, newsletter editing, etc.) 
 Open House planning with help from external contractor 


OCTOBER 
 Designing and printing brochures to be ready for Open House 
 Open House mid October with guest speakers from Concordia University 
 Preparation for Strategic Planning Session 
 Meetings with bookkeeper to build a draft 2014 Budget 


NOVEMBER 
 Preparing and organizing Board of Directors meeting (on the job training for Executive Assistant) 
 Finalizing documentation for Strategic Planning Session 
 Presenting draft Budget  


DECEMBER 
 Completing year end Success Indicators for 2013 Strategic/Operational Plan 
 (Team) work started on draft Operational Plan for 2014  


 


ADRIA is now in a strong position to capture the marketplace as it is the regional representative of a 
larger enterprise and, therefore, can offer added value. It is important to capitalize on this opportunity, 
having a captive audience, and to act upon opportunities in a timely fashion. 
 
In recognizing the opportunity of a change in business structure, we want to capitalize on becoming the 
Alberta ADR Membership Society, a unique feature of our organization that creates a niche in the 
marketplace. Emphasizing the value of professional designations in mediation and arbitration and 
ADRIA’s role as the gate-keeper is unique and different from other (ADR) organizations in Alberta and 
has strengthened our relationship with ADR Canada over the past few years. 
 
The ADRIA Executive Director’s job description dated April 23, 2013 lays out areas of responsibility and I 
am basing my report for the past 6 months (as Executive Director) on these areas, notwithstanding the 
above summary of activities from March to December 2013: 
 
Board Support:  


 Initiated a document system that is reliable and easily accessible.  This has required staffing with 
the appropriate level of computer skills as well as researching new technologies that will 
support easy access to distance communication and to Board minutes, bylaws, and other 
important records. 


 
Policy Management: 


 Engaged staff in specific areas to assist in the development of procedures as needed, for 
example the service provision of the National Arbitration Rules, application process for new 
coaches, redefining membership categories, creating course calendars, online registration 
process for instructors and coaches, design and implementation of a roster process and a new 
online credit card payment process. 


 
Strategic Planning: 


 Stayed informed of events and occurrences effecting ADRIA’s business, for instance the national 
task force working on accreditation of education programs and instructors, Bow Valley College 







and Grant MacEwan University’s interest in future partnership with ADRIA to deliver the new 
national Mediation program, Mediation Inter-Agency Network (MIAN) meetings, etc. Attended 
major events that are identified as strategic business opportunities, for instance the Joint Action 
Forum on Civil and Family Justice, Intermunicipal Advisory Committee meetings, HRIA and ADR 
Canada Conferences.  


 
Operational Planning and Budget Development: 


 Oversaw the implementation of the operational plan based on identified activities and 
timelines. 


 Worked with new membership director and professional development manager to evaluate 
priorities and report budgetary variances to the Board. 


  Involved staff in creating the new budget for 2014 based on the Board’s strategic targets. 
  Evaluated staffing needs to match the strategic direction and budget for 2014 in consultation 


with membership director and professional development manager.  
 
Risk Analysis: 


 Initiated new online feedback and measurement tool (SurveyMonkey) for input from 
learners/members.  


 Worked with Media Marketing Technology Consultant to support internal efforts, for instance 
statistical data from reader interest in ADRIA’s newsletter articles; conversion of directory to 
smartphone app; course scheduling, etc. 


 Consulted with membership director on creating a reporting structure that provides quarterly 
progress reports and financial projections, such as Dashboard charts. 


 Informed the Board of threats to the image of the organization, i.e. transition of members from 
AAMS to ADRIA; changes in staff; roles and responsibilities as perceived by membership (i.e. 
complaints policy, designations applications). 


  
Financial Management: 


 Reviewed monthly reporting practices with the bookkeeper.  
 Stayed on budget and incurred a profit greater than predicted (150%) in the budget 
 Monitored expenses and their rationale  
 Kept track of depreciation of equipment and recorded future needs for upgrades of computers 


and office equipment to be included in future planning and budget.  
  
Program Management: 


 Systematically hired new staff allowing for training and downtime, with consideration of existing 
staff and their work load.  


 Assisted new management team in understanding their individual areas of responsibility; was a 
resource for the team in successful task completion.  


 Created a supportive work environment (i.e. appropriate IT equipment support and office space, 
flexible hours and tele-commuting, parking stalls, use of gym equipment).  


 Ensured that staff operated at all times within the parameters of ADRIA’s vision, mission and 
values.  


 Maintained and grew personal contacts with current and future partners while 
 Introducing new staff (i.e., Grant MacEwan University personnel, Red Deer College contacts, 


Bridging The Distance Committee [rural task force], Alberta Business Family Institute, Mediation 
Inter-Agency Network (MIAN), AAMS, private contract clients [Alberta Health Services, Stantec, 







University of Lethbridge], instructors, coaches, ADRIA members, etc.) while new initiatives were 
being rolled out. 


 
Human Resource Management: 


 Hiring for the new staffing structure: prepared three job applications for management team 
members and (systematically) placed advertising on recruitment websites; compiled and wrote 
individual job descriptions based on the Operational Plan.  


 Was an overall resource for staff on all matters pertaining to their employment. Cancelled Blue 
Cross benefit package as only 1 employee (CAMVAP contract) on payroll. In lieu of Blue Cross 
employee will receive a portion of the bonus payment received from CAMVAP.   


 Filled the position of Executive Assistant, transferring duties and administrative support 
pertaining to the Board of Directors; provided cross-training for vacation coverage for CAMVAP 
employee. 


  Hired Registration Coordinator (education assistant) on part-time contract basis to support 
learners, instructors and coaches. 


 Hired IT Helpdesk support on part-time contract basis to initiate electronic conversion of various 
office procedures and provide overall IT support. Contract ended December 2013. 


 Identified opportunities and recruited volunteers to support organizational tasks where 
appropriate, i.e. editing newsletter articles, printing certificates, photocopying and filing; 
recruited various project coordinators for office move, open house, AGM/Conference. 


 Monitored and provided contractors with project parameters, timelines and associated 
remuneration, in form of written contracts.  


  


Advocacy Management: 
 Defined key stakeholders and concentrated on projects pertaining to these areas, for example: 


started action plan for a provincial neighborhood mediation program involving the Bridging the 
Distance Committee, Municipal Affairs, AUMA, AAMDC, etc., prior to planning and organizing 
presentations at rural municipal council meetings across the province.  


 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND MEMBER SERVICES UPDATE 
Activities by the in August 2013 newly appointed Professional Development Manager and Member 
Services Director for September / October 2013 were reported at the November 22 Board of Directors 
meeting. Activities for the remainder of 2013 (November / December) are listed as follows: 
  
Education & Professional Development by Tammy Borowiecki 
 
Enrollment 
November/ December 
We had a grand total of 55 students: 
 33 students in our classes 
 22 students as part of private contracts 
 
Edmonton: 
November – total 9 
 9 – Restorative Practices (ELA – Specialty) 
December – total 19 
 19 – NEG 250 (ADRIA) 
 
Calgary: 







November – total 0 
December – total 5  
 5– NEG 250 (ADRIA) 
 
Lethbridge: 
December – total 22 
22 – MTI course Private Contract (University of Lethbridge) 
 
Courses cancelled - No course cancelled 
Student cancellations - No student cancellations 
 
Notes 


 A lot of focus in November and December was on administrative tasks such as getting the class 
schedule complete for the first half of 2014, organizing specialty courses, managing student 
requests, & updating website content.  


 The following specialty classes have been booked for the next term  
o Conflict Coaching 
o Non-violent Communications  
o Mediation Boot-camp 
o Mediation Case Development 
o Language and Behavior Profile 
o Multi-Party Conflict Resolution 
o Court & Community Mediation 
o Conflict Resolution for the Oil & Gas sector 
o Co-Mediation training 
o Advocacy Techniques for Disciplined Negotiators 
o Restorative Practices 


 The new 40-hour ADRIC Gold Standard Arbitration course will be offered in February/April in 
both Edmonton and Calgary. This program is replacing our 11-day program.  


 Four classes (ADR 110, COM 150, NEG 250 & MED 350) were re-scheduled for Red Deer with the 
first course being offered February 13 


 There has been some renewed interest in the Consensus Decision Making certificate requiring 
some research into adjusting the program to bring it in line with our current courses. This work 
is ongoing.  


 
 
 
Membership Report by Paul Conway 
 
Year-end stats 2013: 
328 Full Members 
151 Associate Members 
479 Members (total) 
 
Since late November, ADRIA’s membership numbers have risen slowly but steadily, reaching 490 in 
recent weeks (up from under 450 earlier in 2013.  Note that this includes five (5) unpaid Associate 
memberships extended to ADRIA’s administrative and support staff as a “benefit” in 2014 to enhance 
communications and employee engagement).  Staff has worked hard throughout November/December 







to individually contact those with 2013 expired membership and attract them back to ADRIA.  Admin 
fees for expired renewals were waived and gaps in membership were approved (unless designated).  
December also saw a significant surge in early renewals, as 2013 prices were made available to everyone 
who acted before our offices re-opened in January.  This does not reflect new money, but money “early 
in the bank” for ADRIA.  There have been zero complaints regarding the Full membership price increase 
from $270 to $285 + GST, and we have seen both renewals and new applications online since the price 
increase was introduced.  ADRIC fees for 2014 have risen by $1 to $86 annually, so the ADRIA portion for 
2014 is $199.  ADRIC is compiling a matrix of membership categories and fees from each affiliate, and 
this will be shared with the Board as soon as possible. 
 
Maintaining a trend towards higher membership numbers represents both a challenge and an 
opportunity for the months ahead.  A heavy proportion of ADRIA membership is up for renewal in 
January and February, so attrition could potentially be high.  Conversely, new learning and professional 
development opportunities are being posted or developed, providing both core and advanced training 
that will attract and retain membership.  Designation applications are on the rise, suggesting that many 
learners will ultimately upgrade their memberships from Associate to Full as an essential element of the 
application process.  Finally, it goes without saying that any strategy for growing ADRIA’s membership 
base will require two key thrusts:  (A) Attracting new members (both professionals and learners), and (B) 
retaining our existing members.  A focus on providing quality membership services and professional 
development opportunities will assist in retaining our current membership.  Other strategies involve 
contacting expired members, practitioners who have never sought membership – notably Champions 
and Leaders in the community, expanding our community in Calgary and Southern Alberta, and 
collaboration with educational institutes and ADR education service providers.   
 
A contact list of Full members, designated and non-designated, who allowed their membership to expire 
in 2013 has been prepared for Board review.   It is suggested that the Board review this list and consider 
reaching out to speak with these former members.  Inviting them to return, and learning from their past 
experiences with ADRIA, will provide valuable insights to the Board and staff, and perhaps convince a 
few members to return. 
 
As a continuation of our recent efforts to reconcile the membership data, a review of 2014 1st quarter 
Full members has revealed almost a dozen members who, through some combination of IT and/or 
human error, have benefitted from an extended ADRIA membership (up to 12 months) without being 
charged.  In turn, ADRIC was also not paid for these memberships, and there will no doubt (A) be 
discussions between ADRIA and ADRIC to reconcile the difference, and (B) undertakings by ADRIA to 
ensure these errors are identified and resolved in a fashion that prevents further occurrence.  Two 
principles are being applied:  (1) ADRIA does NOT plan to retroactively bill these members (even if 
designated), and (2) ADRIA does NOT plan to forward ADRIC dues that were, in fact, never collected.  
January staff actions include, (A) contacting each identified member personally to explain and resolve 
the error, shortening some (unpaid) memberships by a few months where practical, (2) Review the 
remaining three Quarters to identify additional unpaid memberships (which will be of shorter duration 
and fewer in number), and contact them to rectify ADRIA records, (3) reconcile with ADRIC, and (4) add 
administrative and/or IT measures to prevent reoccurrence. 
 
Work continues on marketing materials for the new approved Corporate membership strategy.  Once 
ready, Board members will be approached to actively market these memberships within their contact 
community.  Corporate membership prices range from $1000 to $5000 per year, depending on company 
size. 







 
The December ADRIA newsletter was circulated, and achieved a 50% initial opening rate – a slight 
improvement over the Fall issue.  The website archives were brought up to date (from May 2012), and a 
link was sent to all members in January referring them to the December newsletter in case they’d 
missed it in the holiday rush.  As previously approved, we will circulate the new AAMS newsletter 
quarterly, starting with their inaugural issue mid-January.  ADRIA will be a regular contributor, and the 
January article speaks to the importance of ADRIC designations.  The next ADRIA newsletter will be end-
Feb, with a focus on promoting Spring professional development schedule, promoting the Red Deer 
AGM and Conference, seek Award & Recognition nominations, seek designation submissions, and solicit 
for Board of Director elections, committees and volunteer opportunities. 
 
Other collaborative activities with AAMS have included the production of ADR promotional materials, 
support for AAMS initiatives and a joint visit to Medicine Hat & Lethbridge in January.  ADRIA also 
hosted the Mediation Inter-Agency Network (MIAN) meeting on December 10th, and is committed to 
supporting joint initiatives that highlight the potential for ADR in the Edmonton region.  ADRIA 
participated in the Edmonton Business Diversity Network (EBDN) in January, and with the Alberta 
Municipal Affairs – Municipal Dispute Resolution Advisory Group in December & January.  On this last 
point, there were 3 meetings that focussed on the recruitment and selection of new mediators and 
mentees for the Intermunicipal Dispute Resolution Initiative Roster, and the published selection criteria 
favoured ADRIA training, designations and membership. 
 
The Third Quarter is a national enterprise dedicated to matching talent and employment opportunities 
for mature Canadians, and they recently added ADRIA training and professional services to its resource 
webpage. 
 
Planning for the 2014 ADRIA AGM and Conference in Red Deer is underway, with local committee 
meetings initiated.  There is considerable work to be done if this is to be a success, and sponsorship will 
soon be sought in support.  Board members should already have the following dates noted: 
May 22nd (evening) AGM and Networking function 
May 23rd (8am-4pm) Annual Conference 
May 23rd (4-6pm) Networking 
May 24th Board meeting (am TBC) 
 
The 2014 Directory of Arbitrators and Mediators is being launched this week.  Details online. 
 
ADRIA will host a Networking evening in Edmonton on Tuesday, February 11th at the Yellowhead 
Brewery to recognize those who achieved professional ADRIC designation in 2013.  A similar event will 
be planned for Calgary before summer.  There will be a minimal charge to attend, and tickets are 
available now online.  The Honorable Allan Wachowich will attend, and offer a few words to recognize 
the designees.  It is hoped that regular Networking and Professional Development activities will be 
sustainable in both cities.   
 








CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEEING MINUTES 


FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 22 AND SATURDAY NOVEMBER 23, 2013 


CONCORDIA COLLEGE 


 


Attending: Jim Bancroft, Q.C.; Chuck Smith, C. Med; Joanne Munro, C. Med; Don 


Goodfellow, Q.C., C. Arb; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Mike Hokanson, LLB; Dolores Herman, C. 


Med; Barrie Marshall, Q.C.; Paul Conway; Tammy Borowiecki, Erika Deines, and Sharon 


Wilson. 


Regrets: Deborah Howes, C. Med, and Stan Galbraith, C. Med 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 6:35 p.m., November 22. 


 


1.0 Welcome 


The President, Jim Bancroft, welcomed to the meeting the Designations Committee 


representative, Sharon Wilson, as well as the staff members, Paul Conway (Member Services 


Director), Tammy Borowiecki (Professional Development Manager), and Erika Deines 


(Executive Director). 


 


2.0 Approval of Agenda 


The agenda, as circulated, was approved. 


 


3.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Mike Hokanson, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, that the minutes of the previous 


meeting, namely those of the September 28, 2013, be approved.  Approved unanimously. 


 


4.0 Actions Arising from Previous Minutes (Old Business) 


4.1 Policy on Q. Med Requirements 


The Board was addressed by the Designations Committee representative, Sharon Wilson, 


respecting its proposed motion tabled at the last board meeting and was advised that this motion 


was now being withdrawn for further review.  Following the departure of Ms. Wilson, the 


following motion was made: 







 - 2 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Barrie Marshall, to strike a committee to conduct 


a review of the Q. Med designation including a representative of the Designations Committee 


with Terms of Reference to be prepared by Wendy Hassen (Terms of Reference, attached to 


these Minutes, were prepared overnight and the following individuals volunteered to serve on the 


committee: Joanne Munro, Mike Hokanson, and Dolores Herman).  Approved unanimously. 


 


4.2 Committee to Review Bylaw regarding ADRIA on ADRIC Board 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Joanne Munro, that the report of the 


Governance Committee, dated September 30, 2013, attached to these minutes, be accepted with 


two revisions as follows: 


 - "offices" in Bylaw 6.1.2 should read "officers" 


 - Bylaw 6.1.5 shall read "The National Director shall not serve as an officer while serving 


as National Director" instead of "The National Director is not eligible to hold office while 


serving as National Director".  Approved unanimously. 


 


4.3 Complaints Policy 


After some discussion, it was determined that further review and discussion was necessary and 


the matter was tabled to the next meeting. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Board members to review the Complaints Policy and advise Joanne Munro respecting any 


comments within two weeks. 


 


4.4 Relationship with AAMS (Progress with agreement as per Action Item from September 


28 meeting) 


After some discussion it was determined that it would be prudent to obtain the comments of Erik 


McAvity respecting the Agreement of Cooperation (attached to these minutes) on behalf of 


AAMS. 







 - 3 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


 


Mike Hokanson is to solicit and obtain Eric McAvity’s input and report back to the Board. 


 


4.5 Executive Director's Succession Planning 


After in camera discussions (during board meeting on the November 23), the following Action 


Item was agreed to. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Executive Director to provide a report on the Executive Director's position and the new 


operational structure including the accuracy of the time commitments allotted to the job 


descriptions. 


 


The report should reflect the views of the Member Services Director and the Professional 


Development Manager. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Wendy Hassen to do a "Terms of Reference" document for the Succession Planning Committee, 


which will be reviewed by the other board members and approved at a subsequent telephone 


board meeting. 


 


4.6 Revised Schedule of Loan Payments to AAMS 


The Treasurer, Mike Hokanson, reported that he had received from Donald Goodfellow, 


President of the AAMS, Mr. Goodfellow's letter of October 2, with an attached loan repayment 


schedule reflecting that the term of loan repayment was extended from 12 to 18 months.  This 


letter is attached to these minutes. 


 


4.7 Directors and Officers Insurance 


The Executive Director confirmed that she had provided an e-mail (dated October 2, 2013, and 


attached to these minutes) to the Board confirming the insurance held through AON. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Executive Director to obtain written confirmation from AON in this regard. 







 - 4 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


 


4.8  Condominium Act Review 


Chuck Smith reported that he attended a meeting, convened by the Minister of Service Alberta, 


respecting a review of the Condominium Property Act in relation to dispute resolution issues.  


The Minister of Service, who attended the meeting, indicated that the Alberta Government is 


very interested in including ADR in the Condominium Property Act.  Apparently there is a need 


for mediators with experience in condominium matters and there is likely a role for ADRIA to 


play in developing a roster of qualified mediators and providing the training that may be required 


in this regard.  


 


4.9 Joint Action Forum 


The Executive Director reported on this item in her report (see Item 5.2). 


 


5.0 Acceptance of Reports 


 


5.1 Treasurer's Report 


BOARD MOTION:  


It is moved by Barrie Marshall, and seconded by Chuck Smith, to accept the Treasurer's Report.  


Approved Unanimously. 


 


5.2 Executive Director's Report 


The Executive Director summarized the content of her Report, attached to these Minutes. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Executive Director is to circulate a protocol amongst the Board members regarding the 


National Arbitration Training Program, which will then be the subject matter of a telephone 


board motion. 


 


5.3 ADRIC Board Meeting Minutes – October 26, 2013 


To be provided by Chuck Smith.  


 


6.0 New Business 







 - 5 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


 


6.1 Memorandum of Understanding, Hekima College/Peace Campus 


The Executive Director reported being approached by Dr. Elias Opongo, the Director of Hekima 


College in Nairobi, Kenya, respecting a possible partnering arrangement with ADRIC and 


ADRIA in developing a mediation program that would train professionals in Kenya.  A copy of 


the letter is attached. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Executive Director to obtain further information respecting the specific needs and 


requirements of Hekima College and to further discuss with ADRIC regarding its interest and 


possible participation. 


 


7.0 Other Items 


 


7.1 Education Report 


The Professional Development Manager, Tammy Borowiecki, provided her Education Report, 


attached to these Minutes, and advised that ADRIA had been contracted to design a new Gold 


Standard 40 hour mediation program for ADRIC, that this program is being rolled out across 


Canada in 2014, and that ADRIA would like to incorporate this new program into its core 


mediation training. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, to approve the proposal in 


principle subject to a review of the revenue sharing arrangements.  Approved unanimously. 


 


7.2 Job Board 


The Member Services Director, Paul Conway, recommended several changes to develop 


ADRIA's job board and employment opportunities for its membership.  His proposal is attached 


to these minutes.  Being an operational item, he will proceed with these job postings as part of 


ADRIA's communications strategy. 


 


 







 - 6 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


7.3 ADRIA Board Policy Review 


Stan Galbraith has conducted a review of the language in board policies and provided his report 


in that regard, a copy of which is attached to these minutes.  Further discussion of this item was 


tabled to the next meeting. 


 


7.4 Membership Categories 


The Membership Services Director, Paul Conway, provided recommendations with respect to 


new definitions and fee structure respecting the existing four ADRIA membership categories, 


namely, Full Membership, Associate Membership, Corporate Membership, and Affiliate 


Membership.  His recommendations are set out in a report attached to these minutes. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Mike Hokanson, to accept the amended 


language respecting membership categories and the revised pricing structure.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


8.0 Budget 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Don Goodfellow, and seconded by Chuck Smith, to adopt the draft budget 


(January through December, 2014), attached to these minutes.  Approved unanimously. 


 


Strategic Planning 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Don Goodfellow, and seconded by Chuck Smith, to approve the strategic plan, as 


amended (attached to these Minutes), together with the revised "Vision" and "Mission 


Statement", subject to the staff providing proposed updated success indicators.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Board members to review the "Dashboard" materials prepared by ADRIA staff and provide 


comments to Paul Conway within two weeks. 


 







 - 7 -  


CAL_LAW\ 2026666\1  


MEETING ADJOURNED: 3:30 p.m. November 23. 





